
REVISED 

City of Black Hawk 

City Council 

211 Church Street 

June 25, 2014 

1:00 p.m. 

STUDY SESSION: 

 

1. PRESENTATION: 

 Update on Maryland Mountain / Quartz Valley Project 

 Mary Hart, Mary Hart Design 

 

2. PRESENTATION: 

 Update on Gregory Street Project 

 Ronald Nies, PE, Martin and Martin Consulting Engineers 

 

3. DEMONSTRATION: 

 City of Black Hawk Website 

 Stacy Stout, Stout Strategies 

 

4. DISCUSSION: 

 Proposed Rollout of Updated Branding 

3:00 p.m. 

RINGING OF THE BELL: 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 

2. ROLL CALL & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

3. AGENDA CHANGES: 

4. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:  (Council disclosures are on file w/City Clerk & Sec. Of State) 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT: Please limit comments to 5 minutes 

 (Notify the City Clerk if you wish to address Council on items not on the agenda) 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A.  CB11, An Ordinance Rezoning Certain Property Located at 231 Gregory Street to the HARD – 

History Appreciation Recreation Destination District 

B. Resolution 45-2014, A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for 

a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Isle Casino 

C. Resolution 46-2014, A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Site Development Plan for the 

Expansion of the Sasquatch Casino Property 

D. Resolution 47-2014, A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for 

a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Lady Luck Casino 

E. Resolution 48-2014, A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for 

a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Canyon Casino 

8. ACTION ITEMS:  

F. Purchase of New Street Sweeper 

G. Traffic Signal Timing Study 

H. Construction Bid and Project Budget Recommendation for the Limited Rehabilitation Grant at 271 

Church Street 

I. Resolution 49-2014, A Resolution Setting Forth the Fees that May Be Charged for Open 

Records requests Under the Colorado Open Records Act 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

10. CITY ATTORNEY: 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

12. ADJOURNMENT: 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of the City of Black Hawk is to progressively provide cost effective programs and services of the 

highest quality to the community 



APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

FOR JUNE 11, 2014 

 



 1 

City of Black Hawk 

City Council Minutes 

June 11, 2014 

 

Finance Director Hillis rang the bell. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER: The regular meeting of the City Council was called to order at 3:00 

p.m. by Mayor Spellman Wednesday, June 11, 2014. 

 

2.  ROLL CALL: Present were: Mayor Spellman, Aldermen Armbright, Bennett, 

Johnson, Midcap, Moates, and Torres. 

  

 Staff present:  City Attorney Hoffmann, City Manager Lewis, City 

Clerk/Administrative Services Director Greiner, Deputy City Clerk 

Stevens, Community Planning & Development Administrator 

Linker, Finance Director Hillis, Senior Civil Engineer/Water 

Resources Ford, IT Support Technician Muhammad, Fire Captain 

Cheek, Police Chief Cole, and Public Works Director Isbester. 

 

PLEDGE OF  

ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Spellman led the meeting in the recitation of the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

 

3.  AGENDA CHANGES: Deputy City Clerk Stevens explained that the title of item 8 E had 

changed and Items 8 I, J, K, L, M, N, and O had been added to the 

agenda. 

 

4.  CONFLICTS OF  

 INTEREST: City Attorney Hoffmann asked Council to declare any Conflicts of 

Interest on any issue appearing on the agenda this afternoon other 

than those disclosures and conflicts that have already been 

disclosed and are on file with the City Clerk and Secretary of State. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann asked the audience if there were any  

objections to any member of Council voting on any issue on the  

agenda this afternoon. The audience had no objections.   

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS: No one came forward to speak. 

 

 

6.  APPROVAL OF 

     MINUTES FOR 

    May 28, 2014 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to approve the Minutes of the meeting as presented.   

 



 2 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED.  Alderman 

Midcap abstained.   

 

 

7.  PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

 A. Resolution 33-2014,  

  A Resolution  

  Amending the  

  City of Black Hawk  

  2013 Budget Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

Finance Director Hillis explained we were amending the budget to 

take into account some proceeds received by the City regarding the 

radio communication tower grant.  This resolution recognizes these 

funds and adjusts the 2013 budget accordingly. 

  

PUBLIC HEARING:  Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on Resolution 33-2014, 

A Resolution Amending the City of Black Hawk 2013 Budget 

open and invited anyone wanting to address the Board either “for” 

or “against” the proposed ordinance to come forward. 

 

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the 

Public Hearing closed. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by 

Alderman Johnson to approve Resolution 33-2014, A Resolution 

Amending the City of Black Hawk 2013 Budget. 

 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 

 B. Resolution 34-2014,  

  A Resolution  

  Conditionally  

  Approving a  

  Certificate of  

  Appropriateness for  

  a Comprehensive  

  Sign Plan for the  

  Gilpin Casino Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

Vince Harris with Baseline explained applicant was requesting 

approval of a Comprehensive Sign Plan with 191.51 square feet of 

signage, with 46 signs. The applicant is permitted 270 square feet, 

with no LED signs.  Applicant would like to locate banner with 

frame around on front of building in accordance with new Sign 

Code.   



 3 

 

Recommend approval with two conditions.  Condition #2 was 

inadvertently omitted from Request for Council Action form.  The 

wording of staff condition #2 is:  “The Applicant shall be required 

to add a note on page 1 of the Comprehensive Sign Plan indicating 

the following:  Only the signs graphically depicted within this 

approved Comprehensive Sign Plan are allowed.  No additional 

signs can be added on this property without approval from 

authorized City of Black Hawk representative or City Council, 

depending on the process to permit additional signage.”  This 

wording will be added to all future sign plans to help property 

owners understand the Sign Code. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on Resolution 34-2014, 

A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Gilpin 

Casino open and invited anyone wanting to address the Board 

either “for” or “against” the proposed ordinance to come forward. 

 

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the 

Public Hearing closed. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Torres to approve Resolution 34-2014, A Resolution Conditionally 

Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for a Comprehensive 

Sign Plan for the Gilpin Casino. 

 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

C. Resolution 35-2014,  

 A Resolution  

 Conditionally  

 Approving a  

 Certificate of  

 Appropriateness  

 For the Installation  

 of Traffic Control  

 Bollards for the  

 Z Casino  Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

Vince Harris with Baseline explained this Certificate of 

Appropriateness was for the installation of traffic control bollards 

at the west end of the Z Casino parking lot on back side of 

property.  Approval is recommended with three conditions. Third 

condition was not listed on Staff Report.  “Prior to issuance of 

building permits the applicant shall coordinate with the city and 

confirm that the bollards will be installed on the applicant’s 



 4 

property and not in the City of Black Hawk right-of-way; and the 

applicant shall coordinate with the City of Black Hawk Fire 

Department in regard to provide a bollard and key system to 

provide access in case of emergency.” 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on Resolution 35-2014, 

A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for the Installation of Traffic Control Bollards for 

the Z Casino open and invited anyone wanting to address the 

Board either “for” or “against” the proposed ordinance to come 

forward. 

 

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the 

Public Hearing closed. 

 

Alderman Midcap inquired if there was a way to make chain more 

visible to make sure drivers see these at night.  Maybe reflective 

tape would work. 

 

Mr. Harris stated this was a good idea and said staff will work with 

the applicant to get some type of reflectors on the chains and 

bollards. 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Torres MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Johnson to approve Resolution 35-2014, A Resolution 

Conditionally Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for the 

Installation of Traffic Control Bollards for the Z Casino. 

 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

D.  Resolution 36-2014,  

 A Resolution  

 Conditionally  

 Approving a  

 Certificate of  

 Appropriateness  

 For Exterior Paint  

 and Lighting at  

 231 Gregory Street Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

Vince Harris with Baseline explained the business owner would 

like to paint exterior of building and add three new light fixtures.  

Colors proposed are Rockport Gray, Monterrey White, and 

Sherwood Green.  He recommends approval with staff’s 

conditions. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on Resolution 36-2014, 

A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Certificate of 



 5 

Appropriateness for Exterior Paint and Lighting at 231 Gregory 

Street open and invited anyone wanting to address the Board either 

“for” or “against” the proposed ordinance to come forward. 

 

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the 

Public Hearing closed. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 APPROVE Alderman Moates MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to approve Resolution 36-2014, A Resolution 

Conditionally Approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for 

Exterior Paint and Lighting at 231 Gregory Street. 

 

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 

8.  ACTION ITEMS: 

     E. Resolution 37-2014,  

 A Resolution  

 Repealing 

 Certain  

 Findings in  

 Resolution No.  

 08-2002  

 Regarding Yenter 

 Companies  Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann explained in 2002 City was engaged in 

disputes and litigation with Yenter Companies and adopted a 

resolution to make it very difficult for a bid to be the lowest bid if 

Yenter Companies was a part of the bid.  Now, 12 years later, 

disputes and concerns with Yenter are gone and the restriction puts 

an undue burden on City Staff by forcing them to eliminate some 

good bids for City projects.   

 

Alderman Torres asked if there had been changes in the Yenter 

Company management. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann stated that the company had been 

purchased by its employees and all of the old management was 

gone. 

 

 MOTION TO 

     APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by 

Alderman Johnson to approve Resolution 37-2014, A Resolution 

Repealing Certain Findings in Resolution No. 08-2002 Regarding 

Yenter Companies. 

 



 6 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

     F. Application for 

 New Medical  

 Marijuana  

 Business 

 License –  

 5B1S, LLC dba 

 1859    

 1.  Designate  

 Neighborhood to be  

 Petitioned 

 2.  Request to Set  

 Public Hearing for  

 July 23, 2014  Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann explained this is City’s first application 

for medical marijuana license under new ordinance allowing both 

medical and retail marijuana.  As of today, in order to get new 

license under state law, applicant must first obtain medical 

marijuana license.  This is why applicant is seeking just a medical 

marijuana license now.  If approved by Council today, the motion 

would set the Public Hearing and identify the boundaries of city as 

the neighborhood to be petitioned for needs and desires. 

 

Similar to liquor licensing, medical marijuana is a dual licensing 

scheme.  This is the first step in the process.  Applicant needs 

approval from city and state prior to opening.  According to the 

established ordinance, which requires us to set the hearing date not 

less than 30 days out, the first hearing date would be July 23
rd

 

Council meeting. 

 

Alderman Torres stated he had concerns about the applicant being 

simply a medical marijuana facility.  In the application, the 

petitioners list “recreational sales” under the section about 

checking identifications. 

. 

City Attorney Hoffmann stated this application was the first step 

toward obtaining a retail license.  The applicants will seek retail 

license in future, and the medical facility is one of the criteria for 

obtaining the retail license.  He further stated this would be a good 

question to ask the applicants at the public hearing on July 23
rd

. 

 

 

 

 MOTION TO 

     APPROVE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to approve the boundaries of the city of Black Hawk as 



 7 

the neighborhood to be petitioned and to set the Public Hearing for 

July 23, 2014. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

     G. 191 Clear Creek –  

 Emergency Grant  

 Application for Roof  

 Replacement  Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

Community Planning & Development Administrator Linker 

explained on March 31, 2014, the application for emergency grant 

for roof replacement was received.  Applicant, Ron Servis is 

conservator for John Thilmont, property owner.  The old roof was 

leaking and had multiple layers of shingles. Applicant’s 

homeowner’s insurance was not willing to renew their policy 

because of the roof issues.  Staff feels there is sufficient evidence 

this work meets the intent of the criteria of Section 2 of the City of 

Black Hawk Historic Restoration and Community Preservation 

Fund Guide to Programs.  The work has been completed and 

inspected and the permit has been closed.  Staff recommends 

approval of the emergency grant in the amount of $14,250. 

 

Alderman Midcap asked if the price included re-decking as well as 

shingles and if the shingles in the photos were all of the same 

color. 

 

Community Planning & Development Administrator Linker stated 

there was a lot of rot, so all the plywood decking has been 

replaced.  House was rehabilitated in 2004, but roof was not done 

at that time.  All of the shingles are the same color and were the 

same color. 

 

 MOTION TO 

     APPROVE Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Torres to approve 191 Clear Creek – Emergency Grant for Roof 

Replacement 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

     H. Green Lake Pipeline  

 Replacement  

 Project Phase IV  

 Bid Approval  Mayor Spellman read the title. 

 

Senior Civil Engineer/Water Resources Ford explained this is the 

fourth phase of Green Lake Pipeline Replacement. The City 

purchased Green Lake in 2008 in conjunction with Clear Creek 



 8 

County. Original pipeline was built at the turn of last century.  This 

project is being done in phases – the City is doing about 315 feet 

this year, which is the same as last year.  City Staff put this project 

out for public bid and only received one bid – Tim Davis Welding.  

He has done exceptional work for City in the past. Amount of bid 

$78,290 and will be split with Clear Creek County based on 

ownership shares of Green Lake.  City chose to run project because 

we have the necessary staffing. We will invoice County for their 

share. 

 

 MOTION TO 

     APPROVE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Moates to approve the bid for Green Lake Pipeline Replacement 

Project Phase IV. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

Mayor Spellman requested Council review Resolutions 38-42 

together with one motion. 

 

I. Resolution 38-2014, 

 A Resolution Temporarily  

 Rebating City Use Tax  

 on Construction and  

 Building Materials for  

 Residential Projects  

 Within the City’s  

 National Historic  

 Landmark District Mayor Spellman read the titles. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann stated these resolutions were the subject 

of Council work session from last meeting. Most of these expired 

in April, 2014.  The resolutions, if approved will be in effect until 

March 31, 2016, through the next Council election. 

 

Resolution 38-2014 is a rebate for building materials on residential 

properties within the City’s National Historic Landmark District.  

If homeowner did work on home that wasn’t covered by the grant 

program, there would be a rebate on the use tax for the materials 

used in this work. 

 

Resolution 39-2014 is similar in content to Resolution 38, but this 

would rebate sales tax paid on the materials used for construction 

work on homes within the City’s National Historic Landmark 

District. 

 

Resolution 40-2014 renews the current rebate of 50% of parking 

impact fees for construction of a hotel project of 50 rooms or more 



 9 

provided the Land Use Application is received prior to the 2016 

Council election. 

 

Resolution 41-2014 is the more expansive incentive program 

related to expansion or renovation of existing casinos.  The 

expansion includes hotel project, restaurants, support space and 

gaming floor.  What has changed from previous version is this 

resolution offers additional incentive, at Council’s discretion, for 

hotel projects in excess of 400 rooms for a sales tax rebate on 

public improvements. Section #2 of Resolution 41-2014 outlines 

the details of this incentive. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann explained Resolution 42-2014 is the 

program that rebates device taxes based on market share.  When 

City adopted original program, it was designed to gain market 

share in a growing market, not a market share of a shrinking 

market. City needs to establish a base line so that City rebates 

growth.  Casinos have achieved 74% of smaller market.  This 

resolution sets 74% as the base, but in the future, casinos would 

need to reach 76% to gain the rebate because the market is now 

smaller.  The rebate is based on both percentage and market share. 

 

 MOTION TO 

     APPROVE Alderman Torres MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Moates to approve Resolution 38-2014, A Resolution Temporarily 

Rebating City Use Tax on Construction and Building Materials for 

Residential Projects Within the City’s National Historic Landmark 

District, Resolution 39-2014, A Resolution Temporarily Rebating 

City Sales Tax on Retail Items Delivered to City Residential 

Properties for Personal Consumption and Use, Resolution 40-2014, 

A Resolution Temporarily Rebating Parking Impact Fees for the 

Development of Hotels and Other Amenities, Resolution 41-2014, 

A Resolution to Encourage Diversification of the City’s Local 

Economy by Extending the Waiver of Taxes and Impact Fees for 

the Development of Hotels and Other Amenities, and Extending 

the Waiver of Use Tax on Other Renovation Projects, and 

Resolution 42-2014, A Resolution to Encourage the Increase of the 

City’s Market Share Through a Temporary Rebate of Certain 

Device Taxes. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously 

 



 10 

    J. Resolution 39-2014,  

 A Resolution  

 Temporarily  

 Rebating City Sales  

 Tax on Retail Items  

 Delivered to City  

 Residential Properties  

 for Personal  

 Consumption and  

 Use   Combined with Resolution 38-2014. 

 

      

     K. Resolution 40-2014,  

 A Resolution  

 Temporarily  

 Rebating Parking  

 Impact Fees for the  

 Development of  

 Hotels and Other  

 Amenities  Combined with Resolution 38-2014.  

 

     L. Resolution 41-2014,  

 A Resolution to  

 Encourage  

 Diversification  

 of the  City’s Local  

 Economy by  

 Extending the Waiver  

 of Taxes and Impact  

 Fees for the Development  

 of Hotels and Other  

 Amenities, and 

 Extending the Waiver  

 of Use Tax on Other  

 Renovation  

 Projects  Combined with Resolution 38-2014. 

 

 

     M. Resolution 42-2014,  

 A Resolution to  

 Encourage the  

 Increase of the  

 City’s Market Share  

 Through a Temporary  

 Rebate of Certain  

 Device Taxes  Combined with Resolution 38-2014.. 

 

 



 11 

Mayor Spellman requested Council review Resolutions 43-44 

together with one motion. 

 

     N. Resolution 43-2014,  

 A Resolution Rebating  

 Certain Device Taxes  

 based on Adjusted Gross  

 Proceeds (AGP) for  

 Any One Consecutive  

 Quarter/Three (3)  

 Consecutive Months Mayor Spellman read the titles. 

 

City Attorney Hoffmann explained Resolution 43-2014 involves 

payment of rebate earned when the casinos achieve the 74% 

market share goal for three consecutive months.  It makes the 

payment due immediately based on the number of devices 

recorded as of June 1, 2014.  This is a change from the original 

thinking where the payment would be made in 2015.   

 

Resolution 44-2014 is simply a clean-up resolution.  We initially 

had rebates of sales tax and water fees for non-gaming commercial 

properties.  This resolution repeals the last of those rebates. 

 

 MOTION TO 

     APPROVE Alderman Moates MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Armbright to approve Resolution 43-2014, A Resolution Rebating 

Certain Device Taxes based on Adjusted Gross Proceeds (AGP) 

for Any One Consecutive Quarter/Three (3) Consecutive Months, 

and Resolution 44-2014, A Resolution Rescinding Resolution 14-

2010, Regarding an Incentive for Non-Gaming Businesses within 

the City to Locate and Ultimately Provide Amenities such as Retail 

Development with the Intent of Increasing the Number and 

Duration of Visits and Make Black Hawk a Destination Resort. 

 

    MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously 

 

 

     O. Resolution 44-2014,  

 A Resolution Rescinding  

 Resolution 14-2010,  

 Regarding an Incentive  

 for Non-Gaming  

 Businesses within the  

 City to Locate and  

 Ultimately Provide  

 Amenities such as  

 Retail Development  

 with the Intent of  



 12 

 Increasing the  

 Number and Duration  

 of Visits and Make  

 Black Hawk a  

 Destination Resort Combined with Resolution 41-2014. 

 

 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

  City Manager Lewis stated he had nothing to discuss with Council 

this session. 

  

10. CITY ATTORNEY: City Attorney Hoffmann requested a brief Executive Session 

regarding property transfers, potential litigation, and personnel 

matters. 

 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION:    

  

 MOTION TO 

 ADJOURN Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman 

Johnson to adjourn into Executive Session at 3:29 p.m. to hold a 

conference with the City’s attorney to receive legal advice on 

specific legal questions pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402 (4)(a) and 

C.R.S. § 24-6-402 (b), and to consider personnel matters pursuant 

to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(f). 

 

 MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously. 

 

 MOTION TO 

 RECONVENE Mayor Spellman MOVED to reconvene at 4:43 p.m. 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Spellman declared the Regular Meeting of the City Council 

closed at 4:45 p.m.  

  

 

____________________________                               ___________________________ 

Melissa Greiner              David D. Spellman 

City Clerk            Mayor 



COUNCIL BILL 11 

AN ORDINANACE REZONING 

CERTAIN PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 231 GREGORY 

STREET TO THE HARD – 

HISTORIC APPRECIATION 

RECREATION DESTINATION 

DISTRICT 



 

 

06/16/14 
Q:\USERS\BH\ORD\2014\REZONE TO HARD-231 GREGORY STREET.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 

COUNTY OF GILPIN 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

COUNCIL BILL NUMBER: 11 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2014-11 

 

TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE REZONING CERTAIN PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 231 GREGORY STREET TO THE HARD – HISTORY 

APPRECIATION RECREATION DESTINATION DISTRICT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK HAWK, 

GILPIN COUNTY:  

 

Section 1.  Findings of Fact. 

 

A. Application has been made by property owners Culver Van Der Jagt and Frank 

Garofalo to rezone certain property located at 231 Gregory Street (the “Property”) 

within the City of Black Hawk, Colorado, to be within the History Appreciation 

Recreation Destination District (HARD). 

 

B. Public notice has been given of such rezoning by one publication in a newspaper 

of general circulation within the City and the official newspaper of the City at 

least fifteen (15) days before the public hearing of such amendment. 

 

C. Notice of such proposed hearing was posted on the property for fifteen (15) 

consecutive days prior to said hearing. 

 

D. A need exists for rezoning the Property pursuant to Section 16-121 of the City of 

Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance to the extent provided herein. 

 

Section 2. The Property located at 231 Gregory Street is hereby rezoned to History 

Appreciation Recreation Destination District (HARD). 

 

Section 3. The Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map are hereby amended to conform 

with the zoning changes.  

 

Section 4. Safety Clause.  The Board of Aldermen hereby finds, determines, and 

declares that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Black 

Hawk, that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this 

Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public 

convenience and welfare.  The Board of Aldermen further determines that the Ordinance bears a 

rational relation to the proper legislative object sought to be attained.  



 

 

06/16/14 
Q:\USERS\BH\ORD\2014\REZONE TO HARD-231 GREGORY STREET.DOC 

2 

 

Section 5. Severability.  If any clause, sentence, paragraph, or part of this Ordinance 

or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged by a 

court of competent jurisdiction invalid, such judgment shall not affect application to other 

persons or circumstances. 

 

Section 6. Effective Date.  The City Clerk is directed to post the Ordinance as 

required by the Charter.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon posting by the City Clerk. 

 

READ, PASSED AND ORDERED POSTED this _____ day of 

_____________________, 2014. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David D. Spellman, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Greiner, City Clerk 



CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: June 25, 2014 

 

SUBJECT: 231 Gregory Street - Rezoning Application to the History Appreciation 

Recreation Destination (HARD) District 

  

The owners of the property, Culver Van Der Jagt and Frank Garofalo, wish to change the zoning 

designation from the Core Gaming (CG) zone district to the History Appreciation Recreation 

Destination (HARD) zone district. Please refer to the staff report for a summary of the proposed 

CSP. 

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

The property is owned in joint tenancy by Culver Van Der Jagt and Frank Garofalo.  Both 

owners have consented to this rezoning request.  A boundary line agreement amongst the owners 

of property on Block 28 may be in order, but it is neither a requirement nor a condition of 

approval of this rezoning application. The property onto which the encroachment occurs is 

already zoned HARD. Additionally, an easement agreement between the owners of 231 Gregory 

Street and the City of Black Hawk was recently executed. The owners granted the easement in 

consideration of the City of Black Hawk recognizing an alternate legal description of the subject 

site.  Again, please refer to the staff report for a summary of the proposed rezoning. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Baseline Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE an ordinance 

rezoning property at 231 Gregory Street into the History Appreciation Recreation Destination 

(HARD) zone district, as more fully described in the ordinance and in accordance with Sec. 16-

365(e)(5) of the Municipal Code. 

 

 

RESOLUTION DATE:     June 25, 2014 

ORIGINATED BY: Culver Van Der Jagt and Frank 

Garofalo  

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation  

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: Staff Report, Notice, and applicant’s 

application, Ordinance to Rezone 

property 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:     [ ] Yes     [X]No     [  ]N/A 

INITIALS__________ 

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY: 

 
            6-13-14        

Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation     Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 

mgreiner
Lewis Signature



  1 

Staff Report 



  2 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK       Date prepared:    June 13, 2014 

PLANNING / LAND USE      Meeting Date:    June 25, 2014 

 

STAFF REPORT: Rezoning of 231 Gregory Street HARD Zone District 

For:     City Council 

Project: Rezoning of 231Gregory Street (P-14-27) 

Property Address: 231 Gregory Street  

Applicants: Culver Van Der Jagt and Frank Garofalo, property owners 

Zoning:  Core Gaming (CG) 

Prepared by:  Ethan Watel, Baseline Corporation  

Approved by:  Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation 

Reviewed by:  Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D  

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The City of Black has received (May 23, 2014) an application to rezone the property known as 231 

Gregory Street. The owners of the property, Culver Van Der Jagt and Frank Garofalo, wish to change 

the zoning designation from the Core Gaming (CG) zone district to the History Appreciation Recreation 

Destination (HARD) zone district. An existing structure with a storefront sits on the property. The 

property is currently undergoing renovation with the goal of opening of a marijuana establishment.  

 

In order to accommodate the intended use of the site it must be zoned HARD. The current zoning of CG 

does not permit the intended use.  

 

Rezoning this property to the HARD district will preserve these property's historical and cultural values 

as well as allow the intended use. HARD zoning will allow these properties to be incorporated into the 

Gregory Street Corridor in accordance with the new Gregory Street Sub-Area Plan. 

 

Several properties in the area have recently been rezoned to HARD as well as HAP.  

 

Adjacent Zoning: 

West: 241 Gregory Street, Zoned Core Gaming (CG) 

East: 221 Gregory Street, Zoned History Appreciation Recreation Destination (HARD) 

South: 200 Gregory Street (parking lot), Zoned History Appreciation Recreation Destination 

(HARD) 
North: Church Street Police Department Parking, Zoned Historic Appreciation and Preservation 

(HAP) 
 

A figure showing how the city zoning map would look if the request for rezoning were approved is 

shown on the next page. HARD district properties are shown in green.  

 

Note that a portion of Lot 2, Block 28 was previously rezoned to HARD. The City of Black Hawk is 

owner of the property adjacent to the east, 221 Gregory Street. A portion of the building at 231 Gregory 

Street may encroach onto this other property.  

 

  



  3 

 

Zoning Map showing subject site in HARD district 

 
 

  

APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS: 

Excerpts from: 

City of Black Hawk 

Municipal Code 

Chapter 16 - Zoning  
 

Sec. 16-365. Rezoning procedures, amendments to zoning ordinance and special review use permits. 

Sec. 16-365 (d) Who may apply. 

(1) A request for an amendment to this Chapter, Zoning Map or special review use permit may be 

presented to the Board of Aldermen by persons owning real property within the City or residents of the 

City; 

 

(2) Owners or residents requesting the addition of a land use into a zoning district in which it is not 

enumerated in this Chapter or persons appealing a determination of the Planning Director regarding 

the classification of a use, or pursuing a classification for which the determination of the Planning 

231 Gregory St 



  4 

Director has been appealed, may apply to the Board of Aldermen for consideration of the proposed 

amendments to the zoning district; or  

 

(3) An amendment to this Chapter or a rezoning may be initiated by the Board of Aldermen. Any owner 

or resident may suggest to the Board of Aldermen that an amendment be given consideration. 

 

Sec. 16-365 (e)(5) Basis for approval. The Board of Aldermen shall give consideration to and satisfy 

themselves of the criteria set forth below on land use applications identified in Section 16-361 except 

subdivisions: 

a. That a need exists for the proposal; 

b. That the proposal is in conformance with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan; 

c. That there has been an error in the original zoning; or 

d. That there have been significant changes in the area to warrant a zone change; 

e. That adequate circulation exists in the area of the proposal and traffic movement would not be 

significantly impeded by the development resulting from the proposal; and 

f. That any additional cost for municipal-related services resulting from the proposal will not be 

incurred by the City. 

 

Division 6 

History Appreciation Recreation Destination District (HARD) 

Sec. 16-121.  Purpose and objectives. 

(a)  Purpose.  The purpose of the HARD zoning district is to accommodate and allow for areas owned 

by, dedicated to, purchased, or acquired by the City, or dedicated to a public use, which allows for the 

City to provide recreation, both passive and active, and destination activities for the residents and 

visitors of the City. In addition, the  purpose of the HARD zoning district is to accommodate and allow 

for areas intentionally left free from development, for the preservation of wildlife corridors/habitats, 

scenic viewsheds, cultural and historical areas, landmarks, and natural resources, including forest 

lands, range lands, agricultural lands, and lakes, reservoirs, and water storage facilities allowing for 

passive and active recreation. 

 

(b)  Objectives.  The objectives of the HARD zoning district are to allow for such uses that are dedicated 

to serving the public, and to minimize the adverse impacts and adjacent uses and the community. In 

addition, the objectives of the HARD zoning district are to allow for such uses that are dedicated to 

serving the public and may include passive recreational activities, as well as active recreational 

activities such as mountain biking, hiking, and water sports associated with lakes, reservoirs, and water 

storage facilities. 

 

Sec. 16-122. Use regulations. 

(a)  Permitted principal uses. 

    (1)  Public office buildings; 

  (2)  Public parking lots; 

(3)   Nature center/picnic area/trailhead; 

(4)  Trails (hard or soft surface);  

(5)  Water storage facilities, including reservoirs allowing for passive and active 

recreation; and 



  5 

 (6)  Public pedestrian malls, including retail facilities on said malls, regardless of 

whether such facilities are publicly owned so long as they are dedicated to a 

public use. 

 (7)  Marijuana Establishments, retail, medical, or dual. 

 

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

 

Staff believes that the appropriate zone district for the property described above is the HARD District.  

 

A boundary line agreement amongst the owners of property on Block 28 may be in order, but it is 

neither a requirement nor a condition of approval of this rezoning application. The property onto which 

the encroachment occurs is already zoned HARD. Additionally, an easement agreement between the 

owners of 231 Gregory Street and the City of Black Hawk was recently executed. The owners granted 

the easement in consideration of the City of Black Hawk recognizing an alternate legal description of the 

subject site.  

 

The property is owned in joint tenancy by Culver Van Der Jagt and Frank Garofalo. Both owners have 

consented to this rezoning request.  

 

City Council may approve a proposal to rezone according to Sec. 16-365(e)(5) of the Municipal Code.  

Sec. 16-365 (e)(5) Basis for approval. The Board of Aldermen shall give consideration to and satisfy 

themselves of the criteria set forth below on land use applications identified in Section 16-361 except 

subdivisions: 

a. That a need exists for the proposal; 

Staff believes a need exists for the rezoning in order to implement the zoning code and 

comprehensive plan and appropriately zone properties within the City of Black Hawk 

according to their envisioned and planned uses. 

b. That the proposal is in conformance with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan; 

The proposal for rezoning conforms with the Comprehensive Plan and the new Gregory Street 

Sub-Area Plan. 

c. That there has been an error in the original zoning; or 

Not applicable. 

d. That there have been significant changes in the area to warrant a zone change; 

The character of these properties does not warrant the existing zoning district designation of 

Core Gaming and this continues to add property into the new HARD zone district. The 

Gregory Street corridor is seeing significant change. 

e. That adequate circulation exists in the area of the proposal and traffic movement would not be 

significantly impeded by the development resulting from the proposal; and 

There exists adequate circulation in the area to support the rezoning. 

f. That any additional cost for municipal-related services resulting from the proposal will not be 

incurred by the City. 

There will be no change in municipal-related services. 

 



  6 

Staff recommends that City Council pass an ordinance rezoning the property at 231 Gregory Street into 

the History Appreciation Recreation Destination (HARD) zone district, as more fully described in the 

ordinance. 

 

FINDINGS: 

 

City Council may approve, conditionally approve, or deny a request to zone land in the City of Black 

Hawk.  To support this proposal, the following findings can be used:  

 

1. The owners of 231 Gregory Street have made an application to rezone their property to the 

HARD district. 

2. A need exists to rezone the property at 231 Gregory Street into the HARD district. 

3. The proposal to rezone is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan as well as the new 

Gregory Street Sub-Area Plan. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Baseline Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE an ordinance rezoning 

property at 231 Gregory Street into the History Appreciation Recreation Destination (HARD) zone 

district, as more fully described in the ordinance. 

 

Attachments: 

 Land use application 

 Ordinance and legal description “Exhibit A” of property being rezoned 



  7 

Applicant’s Submittal 

 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the City of Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance that 

the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen shall hold a public hearing concerning a 

request for a rezoning from the Core Gaming (CG) District to the History Appreciation 

Recreation Destination (HARD) District. This property is described in Exhibit A below 

and is generally located at 231 Gregory Street. 

 

The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen on 

Wednesday, June 25, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter.  The public 

hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers located at 211 Church 

Street, Black Hawk, Colorado, 80422, or at such other time or place in the event these 

hearings are adjourned. 

 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES  

MAY ATTEND 

 

Kelly Stevens 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

Exhibit A 

 

231 Gregory Street –  

 

S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 028 Portions of Lots 1 and 2. 









EXHIBIT A 

 

THE WEST TWENTY-FIVE (25) FEET OF LOT 2, BLOCK 28, CITY OF BLACK HAWK, 

COUNTY OF GILPIN, STATE OF COLORADO. 



RESOLUTION 45-2014 

A RESOLUTION 

CONDITIONALLY 

APPROVING A 

CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR 

A COMPREHENSIVE SIGN 

PLAN FOR THE 

ISLE CASINO 



 
 6/16/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\GILPIN SIGN COFA-1.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 COUNTY OF GILPIN 

 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

 Resolution No. 45-2014 
 

TITLE: A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR A COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN FOR THE 

ISLE CASINO  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The City Council hereby determines to approve the Certificate of 

Appropriateness for the Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Isle Casino upon the satisfaction of the 

following conditions: 

 

A. Proper building, electrical, and sign permits shall be applied for and approved 

prior to the installation of any new sign;  

 

B. Window signs currently in place at the north entrance to the Isle Casino that 

entirely cover the glass panes of the windows and doors shall be removed within thirty 

(30) days following the approval of this Comprehensive Sign Plan;  

 

C. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the Comprehensive 

Sign Plan indicating the following:  Only the signs graphically depicted within this 

approved Comprehensive Sign Plan are allowed. No additional signs can be added on 

this property without an approval from authorized City of Black Hawk representative or 

City Council, depending on the process to permit additional signage.  

 

D. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 16 of the Comprehensive 

Sign Plan indicating the following:  This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of 

these 2 banner signs for 30 consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 

days. 

 

RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David D. Spellman, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Greiner, City Clerk 



CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: June 25, 2014 

 

SUBJECT: Certificate of Appropriateness for an Isle Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan (P-

14-17) 

On May 28, 2014, the City of Black Hawk received an application for a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for an Isle Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP) from Steve Schreiner, 

Director of Property Management, on behalf of Isle Casino. Attached is the staff report 

explaining the CSP as well as sign area allowed with the sign code regulations.  Please refer to 

the staff report for a summary of the proposed CSP.  

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

Sections 15-13 (Sign Code) of the Municipal Code regulate the need for Comprehensive Sign 

Plans (CSP).  Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code regulates the Certificate of 

Appropriateness procedures.  This application requests approval of a CSP with 2040 square feet 

of sign area with 14 signs. Per the City of Black Hawk Sign Code regulations, the CSP is 

permitted a total of 1400 square feet of sign area.  However, a previous variance exists for the 

Isle Casino which permits the Casino to utilize up to 2040 square feet of sign area. See staff 

report for additional information. 

 

The applicant has chosen to include a banner sign in this proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan 

(CSP). This CSP will permit the use of the banner sign 30 consecutive days 6 time periods per 

year, or total of 180 days. A permanent location and sign frame has been identified on the casino 

building as required by the newly approved Sign Code.  

 

Currently, Isle Casino is utilizing window signs at the north entrance of the Casino. Window and 

door glass panels of the first floor are entirely covered by signs. These window signs will need to 

be removed since they do not conform to the current sign code. Staff has proposed a condition 

that these window signs will need to be removed within 30 days following the approval of the 

Isle Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Baseline Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE WITH 

CONDITIONS a Certificate of Appropriateness for a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Isle 

Casino as submitted and included with this staff report. The conditions are as follow: 

 

1. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and approved prior to 

the installation of the permanent banner display frame.  

2. Window signs currently in place at the north entrance to the Isle Casino that entirely 

cover the glass panes of the windows and doors shall be removed within 30 days 

following the approval of this Comprehensive Sign Plan.  

3. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the CSP indicating the 

following; Only the signs graphically depicted within this approved Comprehensive Sign 

Plan are allowed. No additional signs can be added on this property without an approval 

from authorized City of Black Hawk representative or City Council, depending on the 

process to permit additional signage. 

4. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 16 of the CSP indicating the 

following; This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of these 2 banner signs for 

30 consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 days. 



 

 

RESOLUTION DATE:     June 25, 2014 

ORIGINATED BY: Steve Schreiner on Behalf of Isle 

Casino  

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation  

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: Staff Report, Notice, and applicant’s 

application 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:     [ ] Yes     [X]No     [  ]N/A 

INITIALS__________ 

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY: 

 
     6-13-14        

Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation     Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 

mgreiner
Lewis Signature



Staff Report 

  



1 

  

CITY OF BLACK HAWK        Date prepared: June 13, 2014 

PLANNING / LAND USE       Meeting Date: June 25, 2014 

 

STAFF REPORT: Certificate of Appropriateness for an Isle Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan 

(P-14-17) 
For:     City Council 

Project: Isle Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan  

Property Address: 401 Main Street 

Applicants: Steve Schreiner on behalf of Isle Casino 

Zoning:  GOLD District  

Prepared by:  Zeljko Spiric, Baseline Corporation  

Approved by:  Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation  

Reviewed by:  Cynthia Linker, CP&D 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND:   
On May 28, 2014, the City of Black Hawk received an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 

for a new Isle Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP) from Steve Schreiner, Director of Property 

Management, on behalf of the Isle Casino. The intent of this submittal is to create a plan that will 

include existing signs on the casino and permit the use of the one allowed banner sign (32 sq. ft. 

maximum). The banner was previously used as part of the Isle’s advertisement and the Casino would 

like to continue to do so. The current City of Black Hawk Sign Code requires that a Comprehensive 

Sign Plan be filed with the City to permit banner use on a business property. No new permanent signs 

are proposed at this time. Attached to this staff report is a copy of the CSP document that catalogues all 

existing signs in addition to the banner. The Isle Casino is permitted 827 sq. ft. of sign area without a 

CSP and 1406 sq.ft. (with the 70% additional allowance) with a CSP per the existing sign code (Chapter 

15 of the Municipal Code).  As an informational note – a variance to the sign area was by City Council 

in 2011 to allow 2040 square feet of sign area when the last CSP was done to add the eastern Electronic 

Message Center (EMC) sign.  

 

In total, Isle Casino utilizes 14 signs of varying sizes with a total sign area of 2040 square feet. The 

majority of the sign area is utilized by an EMC sign at the east end of the Casino. All signs proposed in 

the CSP conform to the current regulations.  

 

In addition to the wall signs, the CSP identifies 2 banner signs they have historically utilized on the 

other ‘Isle” owned property where the Lady Luck Casino is located.  Such proposed banners are 

proposed to be located on the vehicle display rack.  The attachment detail shown includes a black metal 

panel with nuts and bolts on each corner.  They are existing frames in place today.  Each banner sign is 

16 sq.ft. in area. Together these signs do not exceed the maximum sign area allowed for the banner 

signs. Both signs are proposed to remain at the location identified on the CSP. The banner signs, per the 

City of Black Hawk Sign Code, will not be counted toward the total sign area of the proposed CSP.  

Staff has proposed a condition that if the ownership of the Lady Luck Casino parcel is no longer and 

‘Isle” owned property – the banner signs will not be allowed to stay on a separately owned property.  

 



2 

  

Currently, Isle Casino is utilizing window signs at the north entrance of the Casino. Window and door 

glass panels of the first floor are entirely covered by signs. These window signs will need to be removed 

since they do not conform to the current sign code. Staff has proposed a condition that these window 

signs will need to be removed within 30 days following the approval of the Isle Casino Comprehensive 

Sign Plan.  

 

The existing/proposed signs are placed at various spots on the building façade (see Images 2, 3 and 4).  

 

Excerpts from the proposed CSP, indicating the proposed signs and their locations, have been included 

below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Image 1: Casino Signs 

 

Existing Signs 



3 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Image 2: Sign Locations 

 
APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS: 

The proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan has been reviewed by staff for compliance with Chapter 15 

(Sign Code – Sign Regulations) of the Black Hawk Municipal Code. 

 

Section 15-13 (Sign Code) of the Municipal Code regulates the need for Comprehensive Sign Plans 

(CSP). This staff report relates the need for City Council to review and take action on the proposed 

Comprehensive Sign Plan. The Black Hawk Municipal Code requires a public hearing necessitating a 

notice in the paper and posting of the property. Both the notification and posting have been completed.  

 

The CSP is provided by the City of Black Hawk Municipal Code to offer more flexibility with the 

number, size, proportion and balance of signs. The City of Black Hawk Municipal Code permits a total 

allowable square footage of signage to be calculated at one square foot per linear foot of building 

frontage. Each building is allowed a minimum of 128 sq.ft., if the subject building has less than 128 feet 

of building frontage.  When a property owner elects to pursue a CSP, they are allowed a total signage 

area calculated at 135% of the total allowed sign area. An additional 35% of sign area is permitted for 

those CSPs that propose utilization of EMC.  Therefore, the total sign area proposed may be a maximum 

of one-hundred and seventy percent (170%) of the permitted sign area allowed on the subject property, 

if all requirements are met. Excerpts from the Black Hawk Code as they relate to the regulation of 

Comprehensive Sign Plans are included below. Those regulations that are particular to this submittal 

have been provided along with staff comments.   

 

Sign Locations 



4 

  

The total sign area for the proposed CSP is 2040 square feet in accordance with the approved variance to 

the allowed sign area allowed for this property. The total maximum permitted sign area is 1406 square 

feet. The area was calculated using the 1.70 factor since this plan proposes an EMC. A variance 

allowing up to 2040 square feet of sign area has been issued in the past to permit the installation of the 

EMC at the east end of the Casino. Below is an evaluation of the CSP review. 

 

The City of Black Hawk 

Municipal Code 

Chapter 15 – Sign Code 

Article IV – Sign Regulations 
 

Sec. 15-13.Comprehensive Sign Plans. The Comprehensive Sign Plan is the device and process 

employed by the City to ensure an appropriate balance between building architecture, signage and 

neighborhood aesthetics. This Section assumes that strict compliance with preceding sections of this 

Chapter provides effective signage for smaller properties and developments and meets community goals 

for appearance and safety. However, as developments grow in size, opportunities for more effective 

signage increases. Larger sites offer opportunities for alternative regulation of the number, size, 

proportion and balance of signs according to alternative standards consistent with the types of 

establishments, state of the art technology and their approved architecture character. 

 

Sec. 15-13(b) Applicability. 

 

(1) Any building located in a nonresidential district wanting to have additional sign area than 

allowed in a Standard Sign Plan and wanting the ability to utilize special event banners and signs for 

any special event as defined in the Black Hawk Municipal Code. The regulations governing a Certificate 

of Appropriateness can be found in Section 16-368 (City Council historic review process) of the Black 

Hawk Municipal Code. 

 

(2) Comprehensive Sign Plans are not permitted within Residential Districts as defined by this 

Chapter. 

 

Sec. 15-13 (c) Application filing. Applications for Comprehensive Sign Plans shall be submitted to the 

Planning Department. 

 

Staff Comment: The applicant has chosen to voluntarily prepare a Comprehensive Sign Plan for 

the Isle Casino.  
 

Sec. 15-13 (d) Submittal requirements. 

 

(1) Applicants must submit a detailed Comprehensive Sign Plan with attached written 

stipulations for review and approval. Such stipulations shall consider all appropriate 

concerns including, but not limited to, the following items: location, relationship of signs to 

adjacent properties, size, height, color, lighting, technology options, orientation, 

construction materials and typography. 

 

(2) Comprehensive Sign Plans shall include: 



5 

  

 

a. All signs, their location in site plan format, and color renderings of the proposed 

signage. Where sign lighting will have a significant impact on the visual interpretation of 

the sign, color renderings should be submitted to show the effects of the proposed signs 

and lighting. 

 

b. Dimensions of each proposed sign listed in a chart summarizing the total area of each 

and all proposed signs together with the total allowed sign area for the property. The 

height above grade shall be indicated for blade signs and freestanding signs. 

 

c. A statement as to the calculation of the allowed sign area based on the appropriate 

building frontage length for the building. 

 

d. The site plan shall include the property lines of the subject site in order to determine 

that all signage is contained on the property. 

 

Sec. 15-13 (e) Submittal requirements. In case of projecting or blade signs that utilize the airspace 

above public right-of-way, a license agreement will be generated by the City of Black Hawk for the 

applicant to review and it shall be reviewed for approval by City Council. 

 

Staff Comment: All above regulations have been fulfilled. 
 

Sec. 15-13(f) No minimum or maximum standards are established for the Comprehensive Sign Plan, 

except as follows:  

 

(1) The total sign area proposed may not exceed one hundred and thirty-five percent (135%) of the 

permitted sign area allowed on the subject property as calculated and regulated in Section 15-

61. An additional thirty-five percent (35%) of sign area may be granted to a Comprehensive Sign 

Plan if the application includes the use of electronic message signs (EMS). Therefore, the total 

sign area proposed may be a maximum of one-hundred and seventy percent (170%) of the 

permitted sign area allowed on the subject property, if all requirements are met. 

 

(2) Permanent window signage shall meet the requirements as set forth in Section 15-43(8). 

 

(3) Temporary Banner Sign and Special Event Signs: 

a. Temporary Banner Sign: One temporary vinyl style banner sign is allowed only if included in 

an approved Comprehensive Sign Plan. A temporary banner sign shall not count toward the 

maximum sign area permitted for a given business and shall adhere to the following regulations: 

 

1. There shall not be more than one (1) Temporary Banner Sign attached to the building; 

and 

2. Such sign shall be placed in the approved designated display location on the building 

and shall be constructed out of high quality material; and 

3. Such sign shall be allowed to be made of flexible plastic, cardboard, vinyl, fabric or 

similar non-rigid water-proof material; and 



6 

  

4. Such sign shall be attached in an inconspicuous manner without zip ties, ropes or 

other similar visible material; and 

5. Such sign shall be adhered to the building with grommets and be attached with nuts, 

bolts or other similar non-visible fasteners; and 

6. Such sign shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet in size; and 

7. Placement of such sign shall be allowed for thirty (30) consecutive days, six (6) times 

in a calendar year as specified by the business owner and proper notification to the 

Planning Department for such days. 

 

 

Staff Comment: The Isle Casino property abuts public right-of-way along Main Street and 

Miner’s Mesa Street. In total, the building façade on the subject property abuts 827.25 linear feet 

of public right-of-way. Per code, buildings with frontage longer than 128 feet may convert their 

frontage to sign area using a 1 linear foot to 1 square foot ratio. Based on the above regulation, the 

Isle Casino is permitted 827.25 sq.ft. of sign area. In addition, the Isle Casino is permitted an 

additional 70% of sign area for utilizing a CSP and an EMC. With the additional sign area, the 

maximum sign area permitted for the Isle CSP is 1406 square feet.  

 

A previous variance (Res. No.29-2011) exists for the property, which allows the Isle Casino to 

exceed the maximum sign area allowed. This variance permits the Casino to utilize up to 2040 

square feet of sign area.  

 

Sec. 15-13(g) The Comprehensive Sign Plan shall be reviewed in terms of its impact on surrounding 

land uses and its compatibility with the purposes of this Chapter and with other City planning and 

zoning programs and regulations. 

 

Sec. 15-13(i) Council review and approval. Within sixty (60) days of receipt of a complete application, 

the Council shall act to approve, approve with conditions or deny the application. The comprehensive 

sign plan shall be approved if: 

 

(1) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will provide signage more compatible with the 

surrounding development and designed with a high quality appearance; and 

 

Staff Comment: The signs are compatible with the other business signs that surround the 

property in the heart of Black Hawk’s gaming district.   
 

(2) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will result in architecture and graphics of a scale 

appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood and development area; and 

 

Staff Comment: The signs are compatible with surrounding properties in terms of size and scale. 

The signs do not over-encumber the façade of the subject building and complements the existing 

architecture.  
  

(3) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will provide signage consistent with the 

architecture and site plan characteristics of the proposed or existing project; and 

 



7 

  

Staff Comment: Existing signs are consistent in both size and form with the architecture and site 

characteristics.  
 

(4) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will be materially beneficial in achieving the 

goals and objectives of the City's standards that relate to community design and aesthetics; and 

 

Staff Comment: The signs meet the objectives of the City’s standards and match existing 

approved aesthetics.  
 

(5) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will be materially beneficial in achieving the 

goals and objectives cited in the purpose of the Sign Code; and 

 

Staff Comment: The sign plan meets the purpose of the comprehensive sign plan program. 
 

Sec. 15-13(j) Modifications: Once authorized by the Council, a Comprehensive Sign Plan may be 

modified through the following procedure: 

 

(1) Regardless of size, any building with a Comprehensive Sign Plan will require an approval, 

either by City Council or Administrative, to make changes to the said plan. 

a. City Council approval is required for changes to a Comprehensive Sign Plan for major 

modifications (changes to greater than 10% of the initial approved Comprehensive Sign Plan 

sign area) as long as the total sign area allowed is not exceeded. 

 

b. Administrative approval is required for changes to signs including minor modifications 

(changes to 10% or less of the initial approved Comprehensive Sign Plan sign area). 

 

Staff Comment: A previous Comprehensive Sign Plan existed for Isle Casino. In light of the recent 

Sign Code changes, most specifically related to the ‘banner’ regulations, the client has decided to 

update their CSP.  

  

STAFF COMMENTS: 

 

Staff from Baseline Corporation has reviewed and evaluated the prepared Comprehensive Sign Plan 

provided for the Isle Casino and finds the document to be in compliance with the regulations established 

in Sec. 15-13(f), which states that the total sign area used may not exceed one hundred and seventy 

percent (170%) of the permitted sign area. The CSP document includes approximately 2040 total sq.ft. 

of sign area. The total permitted sign area for the Isle Casino, based on building street frontage, is 1400 

sq.ft.  

A variance is in place to permit the additional sign area for the Casino.  

 

The applicant has chosen to include a banner sign in this proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP). 

This CSP will permit the use of the banner sign 30 consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a 

total of 180 days. A permanent location and sign frame have been identified on the Casino as required 

by the Sign Code. It is important to note that the banner sign, due to its location constraints, had to be 

split into two signs 16 square feet in area. The banner sign will be allowed to be installed in such 

manner, but the sections of the banner sign need to remain where indicated.  



8 

  

 

Currently, Isle Casino is utilizing window signs at the north entrance of the Casino. Window and door 

glass panels of the first floor are entirely covered by signs. These window signs will need to be removed 

since they do not conform to the current sign code. Staff has proposed a condition that these window 

signs will need to be removed within 30 days following the approval of the Isle Casino Comprehensive 

Sign Plan. 

 

Staff recommends that the proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Isle Casino be approved and a 

Certificate of Appropriateness be granted, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and approved prior to the 

installation of the permanent banner display frame.  

2. Window signs currently in place at the north entrance to the Isle Casino that entirely cover the 

glass panes of the windows and doors shall be removed within 30 days following the approval of 

this Comprehensive Sign Plan.  

3. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the CSP indicating the following; 

Only the signs graphically depicted within this approved Comprehensive Sign Plan are allowed. 

No additional signs can be added on this property without an approval from authorized City of 

Black Hawk representative or City Council, depending on the process to permit additional 

signage. 

4. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 16 of the CSP indicating the following; 

This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of these 2 banner signs for 30 consecutive 

days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 days. 

 

FINDINGS: 
Within sixty (60) days of receipt of a complete application, the City Council may approve, conditionally 

approve, or deny the application for Comprehensive Sign Plan. Sections 15-13 (a) Purpose and (b) 

Applicability provide the ability of the property owner to submit the application. Following are findings 

that can be referred to relate to the criteria in Section 15-13 (i): 

 

(1) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will provide signage that is compatible with 

the surrounding development and designed with a high quality appearance; and 

 

(2) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will result in architecture and graphics of a 

scale appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood and development area; and 

 

(3) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will provide signage consistent with the 

architecture and site plan characteristics of the proposed or existing project; and 

 

(4) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will be materially beneficial in achieving 

the goals and objectives of the City's standards that relate to community design and aesthetics; 

and 

 

(5) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will be materially beneficial in achieving 

the goals and objectives cited in the purpose of the Sign Code.  

 



9 

  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Baseline Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS 

a Certificate of Appropriateness for a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Isle Casino as submitted and 

included with this staff report. The conditions are as follow: 

  

1. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and approved prior to the 

installation of the permanent banner display frame.  

2. Window signs currently in place at the north entrance to the Isle Casino that entirely cover the 

glass panes of the windows and doors shall be removed within 30 days following the approval of 

this Comprehensive Sign Plan.  

3. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the CSP indicating the following; 

Only the signs graphically depicted within this approved Comprehensive Sign Plan are allowed. 

No additional signs can be added on this property without an approval from authorized City of 

Black Hawk representative or City Council, depending on the process to permit additional 

signage. 

4. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 16 of the CSP indicating the following; 

This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of these 2 banner signs for 30 consecutive 

days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 days. 

 

 

 

Attachments:   

● Land Development Application Form 

● Comprehensive Sign Plan document 

 



10 

  

Applicant's Submittal 

 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the City of Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance that 

the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen shall hold a public hearing concerning a 

Certificate of Appropriateness for the Isle Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan. This 

property is described in Exhibit A below and is generally located at 401 Main Street. 

 

The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen on 

Wednesday, June 25, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter.  The public 

hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers located at 211 Church 

Street, Black Hawk, Colorado, 80422, or at such other time or place in the event these 

hearings are adjourned. 

 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES  

MAY ATTEND 

 

Kelly Stevens 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

Exhibit A 

 

401 Main Street –  

 

S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 052 Lot: 001 THRU:- Lot: 018, Subd: 

BLACK HAWK Block: 051 Lot: 005 THRU:- Lot: 021 LESS PT 659/255 A TRACT OF 

LAND DESC 624/373 & 379 KNOWN AS THE ISLE OF CAPRI SUB WHICH INC 

LTS BLKS & TRACTS - MARY ANN KELLY & A H WHITFORD & STEVENS & 

JOHN BRUHL TRACTS B & C DESC 150//413 & PT OF A DESC 624/379 & 135/475 

& WABASH #42 LESS PT DEEDED & PT RUNNING #592;  and 

 

S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 051 Lot: 002 AND:- Lot: 003 (E 1/2) 

LT 2 LESS PT DESC 703/177 (MINERS MESA ROW) ; and 

 

S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 051 Lot: 004 







2014

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
BLACK HAWK



PS -1

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
170%

zeljko
Text Box
1.70

zeljko
Text Box
1406.5

zeljko
Polygon

zeljko
Polygon

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE



zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE



zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
SIGNAGE



zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
SIGNAGE



BannerSee page 11 Win Me! 2' x 8' 2 None
vinyl interior

metal frame

32
PS-1

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE

zeljko
Text Box
2040

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
does not count toward total sign area. 



zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE



zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE



zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE



zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
ISLE



PS -1



8 feet long 



RESOLUTION 46-2014 

A RESOLUTION 

CONDITIONALLY 

APPROVING A SITE PLAN 

FOR THE EXPANSION OF 

THE SASQUATCH CASINO 

PROPERTY 



 
 6/16/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\SAQUATCH-SDP-1.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 COUNTY OF GILPIN 

 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

 Resolution No. 46-2014 
 

TITLE: A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A SITE 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE EXPANSION OF THE SASQUATCH 

CASINO PROPERTY  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

Section 1.   The City Council hereby determines to conditionally approve a Site 

Development Plan for the expansion of the Sasquatch Casino property on satisfaction of the 

following conditions:     

 

A. The Applicant shall submit a revised Site Development Plan plan set in 

accordance with the comments provided by Black Hawk staff and consultants. Staff must 

issue a letter of approval once all corrections have been made; 

 

B. All construction related to the expansion and improvements of the casino shall 

match the final Site Development Plan, as approved by City Council and staff;   

 

C. All applicable building and electrical permits must be obtained prior to beginning 

construction; 

 

D. The Applicant of the Sasquatch Casino shall consult the City of Black Hawk Fire 

Department prior to issuance of a building permit; and 

 

E. The Applicant will work with the City of Black Hawk to complete a License 

Agreement or similar document to address encroachment of the buildings into the City of 

Black Hawk right-of-way. 

 

RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David D. Spellman, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Greiner, City Clerk 



CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: June 25, 2014 
 

SUBJECT:   Sasquatch Casino Expansion Site Development Plan 

Owners of the Sasquatch Casino and the Black Hawk Station Casino requests approval of a Site 

Development Plan to extend the Sasquatch Casino operations onto the property located at 

131/135 Gregory Street and create several doorway connections between the Casinos. 
   
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

The City of Black Hawk received (May 23, 2014) an application for a Site Development Plan 

(SDP) for the proposed Sasquatch Casino Expansion located at 125 Gregory Street in Black 

Hawk. The application was submitted by Look Architecture, LLC on behalf of the owners of 

Black Hawk Station Casino, Sasquatch Casino and the vacant building previously known as El 

Dorado. The proposal intends to expand Sasquatch Casino into the building space immediately 

west of the Casino. The expansion proposes to establish doorways between the current and new 

space to allow customers to walk between gaming areas. In addition, the owner proposes to 

establish a connection between Sasquatch Casino and Black Hawk Station Casino. This 

connection would be established by creating two doorways in the existing wall between the 

Casinos. No exterior improvements are proposed at this time.  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Baseline Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE WITH 

CONDITIONS a Site Development Plan for the Sasquatch Casino expansion, as submitted and 

included with this staff report. The conditions are as follows: 

 

1. The applicant shall submit a revised SDP plan set in accordance with the comments 

provided by Black Hawk staff and consultants. Staff must issue a letter of approval once 

all corrections have been made. 

2. All construction related to the expansion and improvements of the casino shall match the 

final site development plan, as approved by City Council and staff.   

3. All applicable Building and Electrical permits must be obtained prior to beginning 

construction. 

4. The owners of the Sasquatch Casino shall consult the City of Black Hawk Fire 

Department prior to issuance of a building permit. 

5. The applicant will work with the City of Black Hawk to complete a License Agreement 

or similar document to deal with the encroachment of the buildings into the City of Black 

Hawk right-of-way. 



RESOLUTION DATE:     June 25, 2014 

ORIGINATED BY: Look Architecture o/b/o property 

owners. 

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation  

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: Staff Report, and applicant’s 

application 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:     [ ] Yes     [  ] No     [  ] N/A 

INITIALS__________ 

 

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY: 

 
 
           6/13/2014        

Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation    Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 

mgreiner
Lewis Signature



Staff Report 



1 

 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK       Date prepared:    June 13, 2014 

PLANNING / LAND USE      Meeting Date:    June 25, 2014 

 

STAFF REPORT: Sasquatch Casino Expansion Site Development Plan  

For:     City Council 

Project: Smith Properties / P-13-31 

Property Address: 125,131/135,145 Main Street 

Applicants: Look Architecture, LLC o/b/o Black Hawk Station and Sasquatch Casinos 

Zoning:  Gaming Outstanding Lodging District (GOLD) 

Prepared by:  Zeljko Spiric & Ethan Watel, Baseline Corporation  

Approved by:  Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation  

Reviewed by:  Cynthia Linker, CP&D Administrator 

 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND:   
The City of Black Hawk received (May 23, 2014) an application for a Site Development Plan (SDP) for 

the proposed Sasquatch Casino Expansion located at 125 Gregory Street in Black Hawk. The application 

was submitted by Look Architecture, LLC on behalf of the owners of Black Hawk Station Casino, 

Sasquatch Casino and the vacant building previously known as El Dorado. Together these properties 

make up 125, 131/135,141 Gregory Street. The proposal intends to expand Sasquatch Casino into the 

building space immediately west of the Casino. The vacant building was previously occupied by El 

Dorado Casino. The expansion proposes to establish doorways/passageways between the current and 

new space to allow customers to walk between gaming areas. In addition, the owner proposes to 

establish a connection between Sasquatch Casino and Black Hawk Station Casino. This connection 

would be established by creating four doorways in the existing walls between the Casinos (Image 1). No 

exterior improvements are proposed at this time.  

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Image 1: Proposed Casino Expansion 

Proposed 

doorways 

Existing 

Sasquatch Casino 

Future addition to 

Sasquatch Casino 

Existing Black 

Hawk Station 

Casino 



2 

 

REVIEW CRITERIA: 

 

Applicable City of Black Hawk Regulations 

 

Application Procedures and Submittal Requirements: 

 

Baseline comments are provided in bold italics.  

  

Excerpts from:  

City of Black Hawk 

Zoning Code 

Chapter 16 – Zoning; Article XVII 
 

Sec. 16-361. Procedures and submittal requirements. This Chapter establishes and explain the 

processes, procedures, fees and submittal requirements for site plans, special review use permits, 

historic and architectural review, planned unit development, rezoning and amendments to the Zoning 

Ordinance, variances, nonconforming uses, structures and lots, notice of public hearings and appeals, 

and site development standards and procedures for establishing vested rights. All applications submitted 

under this Chapter shall be signed by the applicant and shall certify that the applicant has reviewed this 

Chapter and the application complies with the requirements of this Chapter. 

 

16-362. Site Development standards and procedures for establishing vested property rights. 

 

 (a). These site development standards are intended to enhance and protect the area's natural, as 

well as man-made environments. This Section also defines a site specific development plan to 

implement Article 68 of Title 24, C.R.S. No vested property rights shall be created in the City except 

by compliance with this Section and Section 16-139(e) of this Code.;  

 

16-362 (b). General requirements. 

 

(2) No building permit for any use described in Subsections (b)(1)a., b. and c. shall be issued for 

the construction of any new building, structure or improvement to the site, any alteration or 

reconstruction of or addition to any improvement, without first obtaining the approval of a site 

development plan for the proposed use. No application for a site plan shall be accepted until all of 

the real property that is the subject of the application has been platted as one (1) lot. 

 

(5) The site development standards outlined by this Chapter apply throughout the zone districts and 

uses outlined in Subsection (b)(1). These standards are in addition to any other development or 

design standard which may otherwise be applicable to a particular property or specific area within 

the City. In the case of any perceived conflict among applicable development standards, the more 

restrictive standard will apply. 

 

(6) No site development plan will be approved unless all components of the proposed development 

comply with the Black Hawk Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances and all other applicable 

ordinances. 



3 

 

All components of the proposed development comply with the Black Hawk Zoning and 

Subdivision Ordinances.  

 

(8) No vested rights shall be created except by a site specific development plan approved by the 

Board of Aldermen. If the applicant wishes the approval of the site development plan to create 

vested property rights pursuant to Article 68 of Title 24, C.R.S., the plan shall include a statement 

that it is being submitted for designation as a site specific development plan. Failure to include 

such statement or to comply with any other condition of this Chapter regarding site specific 

development plans shall result in no vested property rights being created by the approval of the site 

development plan. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, vested property rights may be 

created by a development agreement between the City and the applicant or landowner.  

 

The site development plan in in compliance with all criteria of this chapter. A vested rights 

statement is included on the proposed site development plan.   

 

(c) Application and site development plan submittal requirements. 

 

(1) Each request for site development plan approval shall be accompanied by one (1) copy of the 

complete application form, fifteen (15) copies of the proposed site development plan with related 

information, three (3) copies of the architectural renderings of any buildings or structures and 

an application fee (applicant's package). Such plans shall be prepared by a qualified 

professional architect, or engineer. The fee will be the same as provided in Section 16-370 of this 

Chapter. If the plan is to serve as the site specific development plan for creation of a vested 

right, the plan shall be so marked and the fee for such designation shall be submitted with the 

applicant's package. 

 

Applicant’s package has met all of the proposed criteria.  

 

(2) The applicant's package will be submitted to the Planning Director. The applicant shall sign 

a transmittal letter describing the contents of the package. 

 

Applicant has submitted all of the required documents to the planning staff.  

 

(3) The proposed site development plan shall be prepared by a qualified professional (architect, 

landscape architect or engineer) and drawn on one (1) or more sheets of paper measuring 

twenty-four (24) by thirty-six (36) inches with a minimum scale of one (1) inch equals fifty (50) 

feet unless a different scale or size of paper is approved by the Planning Director. Each site 

development plan will be signed by the applicant. 

 

The proposed site development plan has been prepared by a professional architect. The 

submitted materials meet all criteria.  

 

(4) The site development plan described in Subsection (b)(1) shall contain the following 

information: 

a. Date of preparation. – Included 

 



4 

 

b. North arrow with written and graphic scale. – Included 

 

c. Vicinity map showing the relationship of the site to the surrounding area within a one 

half-mile radius. – Included 

 

d. Listings of the gross acreage, lot acreage and net acreage of each proposed use, as 

well as the number of dwelling units (when applicable) and the number of buildings and gross 

floor area (when applicable). – Included 

 

e. Listings of the number of all parking stalls, as well as indicating number of compact 

car and handicap parking spaces. 

 

  The site does not contain onsite parking.  

 

f. The existing grading and drainage information on the site drawn at five-foot intervals 

and related to United States Geological Survey (USGS) datum, as well as finished grades and 

contours proposed by the applicant. 

 

 The proposed site development plan does not require grading and drainage 

information since no exterior remodeling or changes to structural foundation and layout are 

being proposed.  

 

g. The size and location of all existing and proposed public and private utility and 

emergency easements or other rights-of-way. 

 

A survey of the property has been recorded.  

 

h. The building envelope, size, setback dimensions and height of all proposed structures 

and all existing structures which are to be retained on the site. 

 

 All appropriate dimensions have been included on the site development plan.  

 

i. Location, dimensions and names of adjacent streets and proposed internal streets 

showing center line radii and curb return radii. Location and dimensions of bike/pedestrian 

paths and walkways shall be shown. 

 

 Streets have been appropriately identified. No other roads are being proposed with this 

site development plan.  

 

j. The proposed layout of the parking lot, including location and dimensions of parking 

spaces, curb islands, internal planter strips, maneuvering aisles, location and dimension of 

onsite vendor delivery areas and access driveways with indication of direction of travel. 

 

 No parking is proposed with this site development plan.  Parking for this building 

space has been satisfied previously.  

 



5 

 

k. Location of all exterior lighting, signage and fencing used to divide properties and to 

screen mechanical equipment and trash receptacles. 

 

 All exterior lighting has been included in the site development plan. Sasquatch casino 

currently has a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the current portion of the casino building. If the 

applicant wishes to install any new signs on the new building addition, a new Comprehensive 

Sign Plan will have to be filed with the City.  

 

l. The existence of any specific historic and physical features on the site, including 

drainage ways, lakes, buildings and structures. The site development plan must indicate which 

physical features will be retained. The location of adjacent properties and their physical features 

within fifty (50) feet of the property line shall be identified, including setback dimensions of 

adjacent structures. 

 

 No exterior alterations to the existing structures are proposed.  

 

m. The location of all existing trees greater than three-inch caliper and the trees that will 

be retained, the location and dimensions of landscaped areas, location and names of all 

proposed plant material and ground cover and the location of other pertinent landscape 

features. 

 

 There is no landscaping on site.  

 

n. Location of all existing and proposed recreational amenities such as open play areas, 

swimming pools, tennis courts, tot lots and similar facilities. 

 

 The site plan does not have and does not propose any recreational amenities. 

 

o. A survey that is certified by a surveyor who is registered in the State. 

 

 A survey has been prepared by a surveyor registered in the State of Colorado.  

 

p. Traffic impact study as specified by the Public Works Department. 

 

 Traffic impact study was not requested/required for this project.  

 

q. Environment report as specified by the Public Works Department. 

 

Environmental report was not requested/required for this project.  

 

r. Soils report as specified by the Public Works Department. 

 

 Soils report was not requested/required for this project.  

 

(5) The applicant's package shall also include the following which may be designated on the site 

development plan or accompanying documents: 



6 

 

 

a. A metes and bounds description of the property verified and signed by a registered 

land surveyor in the State. If the site is on a portion of land that has an existing recorded plan, a 

legal description referencing lot, block and subdivision name will be sufficient. 

 

 Legal description referencing lot, block and subdivision has been included on the site 

development plan.  

 

b. Proof of ownership of the property. 

 

 A narrative explaining ownership lots has been reviewed.  

 

c. A narrative statement describing the general proposal, applicant's name, present 

zoning and the intended use of the property. Also included in this narrative should be the general 

development schedule and phasing plan when the project is not constructed at one (1) time. 

When applicable a statement of maintenance responsibility shall be included in the narrative for 

all improvements shown on the site development plan. 

   

  A narrative has been included on the site development plan.  

 

h. Additionally, the applicant shall provide any reasonable information not covered in 

Subsections (b)(4) and (b)(5) to aid in the review of the site development plan including, but not 

limited to, traffic studies and soil information. 

 

The applicant has provided all necessary information.  

 

(6) The architectural renderings of the proposed building or structures, drawn on twenty-four 

by- thirty-six-inch paper, shall be submitted to the Planning Director.  

 

  No exterior alterations are proposed at this time.  

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff from Baseline Corporation has evaluated the information provided by the Sasquatch Casino 

representative Look Architecture, LLC. The City of Black Hawk Municipal Code allows interior 

remodeling of existing structures such that the alteration does not create a nonconforming use. The 

proposed expansion of the Sasquatch will extend on to a separately owned property that is a ‘Smith’ 

ownership.   

 

In addition, a more accurate survey of the property was prepared to supplement the proposed site 

development plan. Staff has noticed that several corners of the building housing the Black Hawk Station 

Casino and Sasquatch Casino extend into the City of Black Hawk right-of-way. A new license 

agreement between the City and the Casinos will need to properly describe the encroachment. 

 

In summary, Staff recommends that a Site Development Plan be APPROVED, subject to the following 

conditions:  

 



7 

 

1. The applicant shall submit a revised SDP plan set in accordance with the comments provided by 

Black Hawk staff and consultants. Staff must issue a letter of approval once all corrections have 

been made. 

2. All construction related to the expansion and improvements of the casino shall match the final 

site development plan, as approved by City Council and staff.   

3. All applicable building and electrical permits must be obtained prior to beginning construction. 

4. The owners of the Sasquatch Casino shall consult the City of Black Hawk Fire Department prior 

to issuance of a building permit.  

5. The applicant will work with the City of Black Hawk to complete a License Agreement or 

similar document to deal with the encroachment of the buildings into the City of Black Hawk 

right-of-way.  

 

FINDINGS: 

City Council may approve, conditionally approve, or deny a Site Development Plan.  To support this 

proposal, the following findings can be used:  

 

The proposed site development plan intends to utilize a building that has been vacant for a significant 

period of time. Utilization of this building will contribute to increase in gaming activity, revenue and 

upkeep of the City infrastructure.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Baseline Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS 

a Site Development Plan for the Sasquatch Casino expansion, as submitted and included with this staff 

report. The conditions are as follows: 

 

1. The applicant shall submit a revised SDP plan set in accordance with the comments provided by 

Black Hawk staff and consultants. Staff must issue a letter of approval once all corrections have 

been made. 

2. All construction related to the expansion and improvements of the casino shall match the final 

site development plan, as approved by City Council and staff.   

3. All applicable building and electrical permits must be obtained prior to beginning construction. 

4. The owners of the Sasquatch Casino shall consult the City of Black Hawk Fire Department prior 

to issuance of a building permit.  

5. The applicant will work with the City of Black Hawk to complete a License Agreement or 

similar document to deal with the encroachment of the buildings into the City of Black Hawk 

right-of-way.  

 

Attachments:   

 Sasquatch Casino Expansion Site Development Plan 

 Application 

 



8 

 

Applicant’s Submittal 

 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the City of Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance that 

the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen shall hold a public hearing concerning a Site 

Development Plan and Certificate of Appropriateness for the proposed construction at the 

Black Hawk Station Casino and Sasquatch Casino. These properties are described in 

Exhibit A below and are generally located at 125, 131/135, and 141 Gregory Street. 

 

The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen on 

Wednesday, June 25, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter. The public 

hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers located at 211 Church 

Street, Black Hawk, Colorado, 80422, or at such other time or place in the event these 

hearings are adjourned. 

 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES  

MAY ATTEND 

 

Kelly Stevens 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

Exhibit A 

 

125 Gregory Street: Lot 3 and Lot 4 Block 29 Black Hawk Subdivision, Section 7, 

Township 3 South, Range 72 West of the 6
th

 P.M.; and  

 

131/135 Gregory Street: S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: Black Hawk Block: 029 Lot: 002 (W 

1/2 DESC IN COURT ORDER 638/454) & IMPS; and 

 

141 Gregory Street: S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: Black Hawk Block: 029 Lot: 001 (E 71FT) 

















RESOLUTION 47-2014 

A RESOLUTION 

CONDITIONALLY 

APPROVING A 

CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR 

A COMPREHENSIVE SIGN 

PLAN FOR THE 

LADY LUCK CASINO 



 
 6/16/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\LADY LUCK COFA-1.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 COUNTY OF GILPIN 

 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

 Resolution No. 47-2014 
 

TITLE: A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR A COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN FOR THE 

LADY LUCK CASINO  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The City Council hereby determines to approve the Certificate of 

Appropriateness for the Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Lady Luck Casino upon the 

satisfaction of the following conditions: 

 

A. Proper building, electrical, and sign permits shall be applied for and approved 

prior to the installation of any new sign;  

 

B. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the Comprehensive 

Sign Plan indicating the following:  Only the signs graphically depicted within this 

approved Comprehensive Sign Plan are allowed. No additional signs can be added on 

this property without an approval from authorized City of Black Hawk representative or 

City Council, depending on the process to permit additional signage; and  

 

C. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 16 of the Comprehensive 

Sign Plan indicating the following:  This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of 

these 2 banner signs for 30 consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 

days. 

 

RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David D. Spellman, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Greiner, City Clerk 



CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: June 25, 2014 

 

SUBJECT: Certificate of Appropriateness for a Lady Luck Casino Comprehensive Sign 

Plan (P-14-16) 

On May 28, 2014, the City of Black Hawk received an application for a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for a Lady Luck Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP) from Steve Schreiner, 

Director of Property Management, on behalf of the Lady Luck Casino. Attached is the staff 

report explaining the CSP as well as sign area allowed with the sign code regulations.  Please 

refer to the staff report for a summary of the proposed CSP.  

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

Sections 15-13 (Sign Code) of the Municipal Code regulate the need for Comprehensive Sign 

Plans (CSP).  Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code regulates the Certificate of 

Appropriateness procedures.  This application requests approval of a CSP with 754 square feet of 

sign area with 15 signs. Per the City of Black Hawk Sign Code regulations, the CSP is permitted 

a total of 1277 square feet of sign area.  See staff report for additional information. 

 

The applicant has chosen to include a banner sign in this proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan 

(CSP). This CSP will permit the use of the banner sign 30 consecutive days 6 time periods per 

year, or total of 180 days. A permanent location and sign frame has been identified on the casino 

building as required by the newly approved Sign Code.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Baseline Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE WITH 

CONDITIONS a Certificate of Appropriateness for a Comprehensive Sign Plan as submitted 

and included with this staff report with the following conditions:  

    

1. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and approved prior 

to the installation of any new signs.  

2. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the CSP indicating the 

following; Only the signs graphically depicted within this approved Comprehensive 

Sign Plan are allowed. No additional signs can be added on this property without an 

approval from authorized City of Black Hawk representative or City Council, 

depending on the process to permit additional signage. 

3.  The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 16 of the CSP indicating the 

following;  This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of these 2 banner signs 

for 30 consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 days. 

 

RESOLUTION DATE:     June 25, 2014 

ORIGINATED BY: Steve Schreiner on Behalf of Lady 

Luck Casino  

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation  

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: Staff Report, Notice, and applicant’s 

application 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:     [ ] Yes     [X]No     [  ]N/A 

INITIALS__________ 

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY: 

 
     6-13-14        

Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation     Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 

mgreiner
Lewis Signature



Staff Report 

  



1 

  

CITY OF BLACK HAWK                  Date prepared: June 13, 2014 

PLANNING / LAND USE                 Meeting Date: June 25, 2014 

 

STAFF REPORT: Certificate of Appropriateness for a Lady Luck Casino Comprehensive Sign 

Plan (P-14-16) 
For:     City Council 

Project: Lady Luck Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan  

Property Address: 340 Main Street 

Applicants: Steve Schreiner on behalf of Lady Luck Casino 

Zoning:  GOLD District  

Prepared by:  Zeljko Spiric, Baseline Corporation  

Approved by:  Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation  

Reviewed by:  Cynthia Linker, CP&D 

 

 

BACKGROUND:   
On May 28, 2014, the City of Black Hawk received an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 

for a new Lady Luck Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP) from Steve Schreiner, Director of 

Property Management, on behalf of the Lady Luck Casino. The intent of this submittal is to create a plan 

that will include existing signs on the casino and permit the use of the allowed banner sign. The banner 

was previously used as part of the Lady Luck's advertisement and the Casino would like to continue to 

do so. The new City of Black Hawk Sign Code requires that a Comprehensive Sign Plan be filed with 

the City to permit banner use on a business property. No new permanent signs are proposed at this time. 

Attached to this staff report is a copy of the CSP document that catalogues all existing signs in addition 

to the banner. The Lady Luck Casino is permitted 751.5 sq. ft. of sign area without a CSP and 1277 

sq.ft. (with the 70% additional allowance) with a CSP per the existing sign code (Chapter 15 of the 

Municipal Code).  

 

In total, Lady Luck Casino utilizes 15 signs of varying sizes with a total sign area of 754 square feet. 

The majority of the sign area is utilized by illuminated wall signs.  

 

In addition to the walls signs, the CSP identifies 2 banner signs. Each banner sign is 16 sq.ft. in area. 

Together these signs do not exceed the maximum sign area allowed for the banner signs. Both signs are 

proposed to be allowed to remain only in the identified location and cannot be separated. These banner 

signs have been on the vehicle display and are proposed to continue via approval of the new CSP.  The 

banner sign, per the City of Black Hawk Sign Code, will not be counted toward the total sign area of the 

proposed CSP.  

 

A wall art sign exists on the building as well.  

 

The signs are placed at various spots on the building façade (see Images 1 and 2).  

 

Excerpts from the proposed CSP, indicating the proposed signs and their locations, have been included 

below.  

 



2 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

Image 1: Casino Signs 

Image 1: Proposed Signs 

 

Proposed Signs 



3 

  

 

 
Image 2: Sign Locations 

 

 

APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS: 

The proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan has been reviewed by staff for compliance with Chapter 15 

(Sign Code – Sign Regulations) of the Black Hawk Municipal Code. 

 

Section 15-13 (Sign Code) of the Municipal Code regulates the need for Comprehensive Sign Plans 

(CSP). This staff report relates the need for City Council to review and take action on the proposed 

Comprehensive Sign Plan. The Black Hawk Municipal Code requires a public hearing necessitating a 

notice in the paper and posting of the property. Both the notification and posting have been completed.  

 

The CSP is provided by the City of Black Hawk Municipal Code to offer more flexibility with the 

number, size, proportion and balance of signs. The City of Black Hawk Municipal Code permits a total 

allowable square footage of signage to be calculated at one square foot per linear foot of building 

frontage. Each building is allowed a minimum of 128 sq.ft. if the subject building has less than 128 feet 

of building frontage.   When a property owner elects to pursue a CSP, they are allowed a total signage 

area calculated at 135% of the total allowed sign area. An additional 35% of sign area is permitted for 

those CSPs that propose utilization of Electronic Message Centers (EMC). Therefore, the total sign area 

proposed may be a maximum of one-hundred and seventy percent (170%) of the permitted sign area 

allowed on the subject property, if all requirements are met. Excerpts from the Black Hawk Code as they 

relate to the regulation of Comprehensive Sign Plans are included below. Those regulations that are 

particular to this submittal have been provided along with staff comments.   

 

The total sign area for the proposed CSP is 754 square feet. The total maximum permitted sign area is 

1277 square feet. The area was calculated using the 1.70 factor since this plan proposes an EMC. Below 

is an evaluation of the CSP review. 

 

  

Sign Locations 



4 

  

The City of Black Hawk 

Municipal Code 

Chapter 15 – Sign Code 

Article IV – Sign Regulations 
 

Sec. 15-13.Comprehensive Sign Plans. The Comprehensive Sign Plan is the device and process 

employed by the City to ensure an appropriate balance between building architecture, signage and 

neighborhood aesthetics. This Section assumes that strict compliance with preceding sections of this 

Chapter provides effective signage for smaller properties and developments and meets community goals 

for appearance and safety. However, as developments grow in size, opportunities for more effective 

signage increases. Larger sites offer opportunities for alternative regulation of the number, size, 

proportion and balance of signs according to alternative standards consistent with the types of 

establishments, state of the art technology and their approved architecture character. 

 

Sec. 15-13(b) Applicability. 

 

(1) Any building located in a nonresidential district wanting to have additional sign area than 

allowed in a Standard Sign Plan and wanting the ability to utilize special event banners and signs for 

any special event as defined in the Black Hawk Municipal Code. The regulations governing a Certificate 

of Appropriateness can be found in Section 16-368 (City Council historic review process) of the Black 

Hawk Municipal Code. 

 

(2) Comprehensive Sign Plans are not permitted within Residential Districts as defined by this 

Chapter. 

 

Sec. 15-13 (c) Application filing. Applications for Comprehensive Sign Plans shall be submitted to the 

Planning Department. 

 

Staff Comment: The applicant has chosen to voluntarily prepare a Comprehensive Sign Plan for 

the Lady Luck Casino.  
 

Sec. 15-13 (d) Submittal requirements. 

 

(1) Applicants must submit a detailed Comprehensive Sign Plan with attached written 

stipulations for review and approval. Such stipulations shall consider all appropriate 

concerns including, but not limited to, the following items: location, relationship of signs to 

adjacent properties, size, height, color, lighting, technology options, orientation, 

construction materials and typography. 

 

(2) Comprehensive Sign Plans shall include: 

 

a. All signs, their location in site plan format, and color renderings of the proposed 

signage. Where sign lighting will have a significant impact on the visual interpretation of 

the sign, color renderings should be submitted to show the effects of the proposed signs 

and lighting. 

 



5 

  

b. Dimensions of each proposed sign listed in a chart summarizing the total area of each 

and all proposed signs together with the total allowed sign area for the property. The 

height above grade shall be indicated for blade signs and freestanding signs. 

 

c. A statement as to the calculation of the allowed sign area based on the appropriate 

building frontage length for the building. 

 

d. The site plan shall include the property lines of the subject site in order to determine 

that all signage is contained on the property. 

 

Sec. 15-13 (e) Submittal requirements. In case of projecting or blade signs that utilize the airspace 

above public right-of-way, a license agreement will be generated by the City of Black Hawk for the 

applicant to review and it shall be reviewed for approval by City Council. 

 

Staff Comment: All above regulations have been fulfilled. 
 

Sec. 15-13(f) No minimum or maximum standards are established for the Comprehensive Sign Plan, 

except as follows:  

 

(1) The total sign area proposed may not exceed one hundred and thirty-five percent (135%) of the 

permitted sign area allowed on the subject property as calculated and regulated in Section 15-

61. An additional thirty-five percent (35%) of sign area may be granted to a Comprehensive Sign 

Plan if the application includes the use of electronic message signs (EMS). Therefore, the total 

sign area proposed may be a maximum of one-hundred and seventy percent (170%) of the 

permitted sign area allowed on the subject property, if all requirements are met. 

 

(2) Permanent window signage shall meet the requirements as set forth in Section 15-43(8). 

 

(3) Temporary Banner Sign and Special Event Signs: 

a. Temporary Banner Sign: One temporary vinyl style banner sign is allowed only if included in 

an approved Comprehensive Sign Plan. A temporary banner sign shall not count toward the 

maximum sign area permitted for a given business and shall adhere to the following regulations: 

 

1. There shall not be more than one (1) Temporary Banner Sign attached to the building; 

and 

2. Such sign shall be placed in the approved designated display location on the building 

and shall be constructed out of high quality material; and 

3. Such sign shall be allowed to be made of flexible plastic, cardboard, vinyl, fabric or 

similar non-rigid water-proof material; and 

4. Such sign shall be attached in an inconspicuous manner without zip ties, ropes or 

other similar visible material; and 

5. Such sign shall be adhered to the building with grommets and be attached with nuts, 

bolts or other similar non-visible fasteners; and 

6. Such sign shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet in size; and 



6 

  

7. Placement of such sign shall be allowed for thirty (30) consecutive days, six (6) times 

in a calendar year as specified by the business owner and proper notification to the 

Planning Department for such days. 

 

 

Staff Comment: The Lady Luck Casino property abuts public right-of-way along Main Street, 

Mill Street and State Highway 119. In total, the building façade on the subject property abuts 

751.5 linear feet of public right-of-way. Per code, buildings with frontage longer than 128 feet may 

convert their frontage to sign area using a 1 linear foot to 1 square foot ratio. Based on the above 

regulation, the Lady Luck Casino is permitted 751 sq.ft. of sign area. In addition, the Lady Luck 

Casino is permitted an additional 70% of sign area for utilizing a CSP and an EMC. With the 

additional sign area, the maximum sign area permitted for the Lady Luck CSP is 1277 square feet.  

 

Sec. 15-13(g) The Comprehensive Sign Plan shall be reviewed in terms of its impact on surrounding 

land uses and its compatibility with the purposes of this Chapter and with other City planning and 

zoning programs and regulations. 

 

Sec. 15-13(i) Council review and approval. Within sixty (60) days of receipt of a complete application, 

the Council shall act to approve, approve with conditions or deny the application. The comprehensive 

sign plan shall be approved if: 

 

(1) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will provide signage more compatible with the 

surrounding development and designed with a high quality appearance; and 

 

Staff Comment: The proposed signs are compatible with the other business signs that surround 

the property in the heart of Black Hawk’s gaming district.   
 

(2) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will result in architecture and graphics of a scale 

appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood and development area; and 

 

Staff Comment: The proposed signs are compatible with surrounding properties in terms of size 

and scale. The signs do not over-encumber the façade of the subject building and complements the 

existing architecture.  
  

(3) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will provide signage consistent with the 

architecture and site plan characteristics of the proposed or existing project; and 

 

Staff Comment: Existing signs are consistent in both size and form with the architecture and site 

characteristics.  
 

(4) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will be materially beneficial in achieving the 

goals and objectives of the City's standards that relate to community design and aesthetics; and 

 

Staff Comment: The proposed signs meet the objectives of the City’s standards and match existing 

approved aesthetics.  
 



7 

  

(5) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will be materially beneficial in achieving the 

goals and objectives cited in the purpose of the Sign Code; and 

 

Staff Comment: The proposed sign plan meets the purpose of the comprehensive sign plan 

program. 
 

Sec. 15-13(j) Modifications: Once authorized by the Council, a Comprehensive Sign Plan may be 

modified through the following procedure: 

 

(1) Regardless of size, any building with a Comprehensive Sign Plan will require an approval, 

either by City Council or Administrative, to make changes to the said plan. 

a. City Council approval is required for changes to a Comprehensive Sign Plan for major 

modifications (changes to greater than 10% of the initial approved Comprehensive Sign Plan 

sign area) as long as the total sign area allowed is not exceeded. 

 

b. Administrative approval is required for changes to signs including minor modifications 

(changes to 10% or less of the initial approved Comprehensive Sign Plan sign area). 

 

Staff Comment: A previous Comprehensive Sign Plan existed for Lady Luck Casino. In light of 

the recent Sign Code changes, most specifically related to the ‘banner’ regulations, the client has 

decided to update their CSP.  

  

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Baseline staff has reviewed and evaluated the prepared Comprehensive Sign Plan provided for the Lady 

Luck Casino and finds the document to be in compliance with the regulations established in Sec. 15-

13(f), which states that the total sign area used may not exceed one hundred and seventy percent (170%) 

of the permitted sign area. The CSP document includes approximately 754 total sq.ft. of sign area. The 

total permitted sign area for the Lady Luck Casino, based on building street frontage, is 1277 sq.ft.  

 

The applicant has chosen to include a banner sign in this proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP). 

This CSP will permit the use of the banner sign 30 consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a 

total of 180 days. A permanent location and sign frame have been identified by the Casino as required 

by the Sign Code. It is important to note that the banner sign, due to its location constraints, had to be 

split into two signs 16 square feet in area. The banner sign will be allowed to be installed in such 

manner, but the sections of the banner sign need to remain where indicated.  

 

Staff recommends that the proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Lady Luck Casino be approved 

and a Certificate of Appropriateness be granted, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and approved prior to the 

installation of any new signs.  

2. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the CSP indicating the following; 

Only the signs graphically depicted within this approved Comprehensive Sign Plan are allowed. 

No additional signs can be added on this property without an approval from authorized City of 

Black Hawk representative or City Council, depending on the process to permit additional 

signage. 



8 

  

3.  The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 16 of the CSP indicating the following;  

This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of these 2 banner signs for 30 consecutive 

days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 days. 

 

 

FINDINGS: 
Within sixty (60) days of receipt of a complete application, the City Council may approve, conditionally 

approve, or deny the application for Comprehensive Sign Plan. Sections 15-13 (a) Purpose and (b) 

Applicability provide the ability of the property owner to submit the application. Following are findings 

that can be referred to relate to the criteria in Section 15-13 (i): 

 

(1) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will provide signage that is compatible with 

the surrounding development and designed with a high quality appearance; and 

 

(2) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will result in architecture and graphics of a 

scale appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood and development area; and 

 

(3) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will provide signage consistent with the 

architecture and site plan characteristics of the proposed or existing project; and 

 

(4) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will be materially beneficial in achieving 

the goals and objectives of the City's standards that relate to community design and aesthetics; 

and 

 

(5) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will be materially beneficial in achieving 

the goals and objectives cited in the purpose of the Sign Code.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Baseline Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS 

a Certificate of Appropriateness for a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Lady Luck Casino as submitted 

and included with this staff report. The conditions are as follow: 

  

1. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and approved prior to the 

installation of any new signs.  

2. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the CSP indicating the following; 

Only the signs graphically depicted within this approved Comprehensive Sign Plan are allowed. 

No additional signs can be added on this property without an approval from authorized City of 

Black Hawk representative or City Council, depending on the process to permit additional 

signage. 

3. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 16 of the CSP indicating the following;  

This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of these 2 banner signs for 30 consecutive 

days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 days 

 

Attachments:   

● Land Development Application Form 

● Comprehensive Sign Plan document 



9 

  

 

Applicant's Submittal 

 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the City of Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance that 

the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen shall hold a public hearing concerning a 

Certificate of Appropriateness for the Lady Luck Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan. This 

property is described in Exhibit A below and is generally located at 340 Main Street. 

 

The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen on 

Wednesday, June 25, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter.  The public 

hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers located at 211 Church 

Street, Black Hawk, Colorado, 80422, or at such other time or place in the event these 

hearings are adjourned. 

 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES  

MAY ATTEND 

 

Kelly Stevens 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

Exhibit A 

 

340 Main Street –  

 

A Tract of land in Millsite 39 in the South ½ of Section 7, Township 3 South, Range 72 

West of the 6th P.M., City of Black Hawk, County of Gilpin, State of Colorado. 

   

 



N:\PLANNING LLC\141 Planning Black Hawk\2013 Black Hawk Planning Cases\P-13-01 Sign Code Amendment\Land Use 
Pre-Planning Application\Land Use Pre-Planning Application 010214.doc  1 

City of Black Hawk                                             
Community Planning and Development                                   
211 Church Street                                                   
P.O. Box 68       
Black Hawk, CO  80422 
Ph: 303-582-0615  Fax: 303-582-2239 
 

 It is recommended that the applicant meet with City staff prior to submitting an application. 

 Applications will be accepted by the City of Black Hawk Community and Planning Department Monday 
through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. 

 In order to avoid delays in the review process, please complete the application in its entirety. 

 Completed applications will be scheduled for HPC and/or City Council review a MINIMUM of 15 days AFTER 
receipt of completed application (as applicable). 

 A minimum of four (4) sets of attachments must accompany the application.  This requirement may vary 
depending on the size and type of project.  Please confirm with the Community Planning and Development 
Department.  Cover page should include a signature block as below: 

 

 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
MAYOR’S CERTIFICATE 

 
THE FORGOING CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS IS 
APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY 
OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO 
 
THIS _____________ DAY OF ________________   2014 
 
BY:  ___________________________________________ 

MAYOR OF THE CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

 Only complete applications will be reviewed.  Incomplete applications will delay the review process. 

 After the review process, the Community Planning and Development Department will determine which design 
stardards are applicable, and notify the applicant if additional information is necessary. 

 Once an application has had a sufficient review completed by the Black Hawk Community Planning and 
Development Administrator, and is found complete, it will be transmitted to the Planning Consultant for 
processing.  Applicants will be responsible for fees/costs to process the application as explained below in this 
document. 

 

 

Black Hawk Municipal Code (Excerpts) 

Sec. 16-370.  Fees. 

 This section establishes the requirement for applicants to pay fees (actual cost listed below plus 15%) to cover 
the costs the City may incur by having the City approved consultants evaluate and process applications. 
Following are the hourly rates for the City consultants (Hourly Rates are subject to change without notification): 

PRE-PLANNING  

LAND USE 

INSTRUCTIONS 



N:\PLANNING LLC\141 Planning Black Hawk\2013 Black Hawk Planning Cases\P-13-01 Sign Code Amendment\Land Use 
Pre-Planning Application\Land Use Pre-Planning Application 010214.doc  4 

 

City of Black Hawk                                                
Community Planning and Development                                   
211 Church Street                                                     
P.O. Box 68 
Black Hawk, CO  80422 

Ph: 303-582-0615  Fax: 303-582-2239 
 

DATE:  _________________________________________  

APPLICANT NAME:  __________________________________________________________________________________  

APPLICANT ADDRESS:  _______________________________________________________________________________  

APPLICANT MAILING ADDRESS:  _______________________________________________________________________  

APPLICANT CONTACT NUMBER: _______________________________________________________________________  

EMAIL ADDRESS:  ___________________________________________________________________________________  

PROPERTY OWNER NAME:  ___________________________________________________________________________  

PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS: ________________________________________________________________________  

PROPERTY OWNER MAILING ADDRESS:  ________________________________________________________________  

PROPERTY OWNER CONTACT NUMBER: ________________________________________________________________  

EMAIL ADDRESS:  ___________________________________________________________________________________  

PROJECT NAME:  ____________________________________________________________________________________  

PROJECT ADDRESS:  ________________________________________________________________________________  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: _____________________________________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________________________  

IS PROPERTY WITHIN CITY LIMITS:    YES   NO  

PRESENT ZONING:  ______________________________  CURRENT USE:  ___________________________________  

NAME OF EXISTING PLANNED UNIT DEVEOPMENT (IF APPLICABLE):  ________________________________________  

NAME OF EXISTING SUBDIVISION PLAT (IF APPLICABLE):  _________________________________________________  

GILPIN COUNTY ASSESSOR’S I.D. NO.(S):    ___________________________________________________  

EXISTING PROPERTY SIZE:  ACRES/SQ.FEET 

(PLEASE ATTACH A COPY OF SURVEY/PLAT.) 

EXISTING BUILDING SIZE:  ______________  SQ. FT. AND/OR NUMBER OF EXISTING RESIDENTIAL UNITS:  ________  

ACTION REQUESTED (COMPLETED BY CITY STAFF): 

A list of required submittal items will be provided to the applicant at the conclusion of the Pre-Planning Process.  A list of 
potential documents that may be required is attached. 

 ANNEXATION OF __________  ACRES OF LAND AND __________  ACRES OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 ZONING/REZONING:  FROM: __________  TO: __________ 

 PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (AMENDMENT) 

 FINAL PLAT: __________  EXISTING LOTS __________  PROPOSED LOTS 

 MINOR PLAT 

 SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

 VACATION OF EASEMENT:  __________ RIGHT-OF-WAY: __________ 

 VARIANCE 

 SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PRE-PLANNING  

LAND USE 

APPLICATION 

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
5/9/14

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
Steve Schreiner 

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
401 Main Street, Black Hawk, CO  80422

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
PO Box 777  Black Hawk, CO   80422

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
303-998-7790

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
steve.schreiner@islecorp.com

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
Isle of Capri Casino and Hotels - Black Hawk LLC

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
600 Emerson Road   Suite 300   St. Louis, MO  63141

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
600 Emerson Road  Suite 300  St. Louis, MO  63141

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
303-998-7790

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
steve.schreiner@islecorp.com

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
Isle of Capri Casino Hotel/ Lady Luck Casino Hotel 

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
401, 340 AND 333 Main Street  Black Hawk, CO   80422

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
Comprehensive Exterior Sign Packages

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
All of our current exterior signage to remain the same. We will be removing our current window 

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
advertising, located at the west end of our 401 Main Street location; prior to July 1st, 2014

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text
X

SchreinerSW
Typewritten Text





N:\PLANNING LLC\141 Planning Black Hawk\2013 Black Hawk Planning Cases\P-13-01 Sign Code Amendment\Land Use 
Pre-Planning Application\Land Use Pre-Planning Application 010214.doc  6 

 

City of Black Hawk                                POTENTIAL DOCUMENT 
Community Planning and Development                                            SUBMITTAL 

211 Church Street                                                     REQUIREMENTS 
P.O. Box 68 
Black Hawk, CO  80422 

Ph: 303-582-0615  Fax: 303-582-2239 

PROJECT NAME:  ____________________________________________________________________________________  

REQUIRED ITEMS SELECTED BY CITY STAFF 

 One legible copy (no faxed copies) of the recorded Warranty Deed(s), or other such recorded documents, reflecting 

current ownership and any recorded copies of all documents references within the Warranty Deed(s). 

 If dedications to the City are to be made, one legible copy (no faxed copies) of the recorded Deed(s) of Trust, 

mortgage(s) and/or assignments to any and all lending agencies or individuals, including recorded legible copies of any 
document(s) referenced within the text. 

 If the applicant is someone other than the current owner, a notarized letter of authorization empowering the applicant to 

act on behalf of the owner. 

 A title commitment guaranteeing clear title, including legible, recorded copies of all documents referenced within the title 

commitment by book and page or reception number.  The title commitment must have an “Effective date” no earlier than 
two weeks prior to the date of the Land Use Pre-Planning Application. 

 If the owner or lender is a corporation, a joint venture, or a partnership, an authorization of signatures (official 

verification that the signatures are authorized to sign up on behalf of the corporation, joint venture or partnership) will be 
required in the form of: 

 A copy of the Articles of Incorporation and/or Corporate Bylaws, or a copy of the Partnership or Operating 
agreement, which identifies by proper name and title those authorized to sign on the corporation, joint venture or 
partnership’s behalf, or 

 A certified corporate resolution by the board of directors specifically identifying and authorizing the signatories. 

 A written description of the request. Include Structures location, size and general design. 

 Annexation Petition. 

 Annexation Plat. 

 Site Development Plan: prepared in accordance with the Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance. 

 Planned Unit Development (PUD): prepared in accordance with the Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance or conceptual site 

plan for rezoning proposals to non-Planned Unit Development zone district. 

 Preliminary Map: prepared in accordance with the Black Hawk Subdivision Ordinance. 

 Final Plat: prepared in accordance with the Black Hawk Subdivision Ordinance. 

 ALTA Survey of property showing the property dimensions, existing structures, existing vegetation, adjacent roadways, 

etc. 

 Lot Line Adjustment Plat: prepared in accordance with the Black Hawk Subdivision Ordinance. 

 One copy of the Traverse Closure Sheet(s) which include the external boundary and all internal lots, and street 

centerlines. 

 Preliminary Drainage Report: prepared in accordance with the Black Hawk Regulations. 

 Final Drainage Report: prepared in accordance with the Black Hawk Regulations. 

 Geological Report: prepared in accordance with the Black Hawk Subdivision Ordinance. 

 Final Traffic Study: prepared in accordance with the Black Hawk Transportation Regulations. 

 Final Grading and Erosion Control Plan; prepared in conformance with the Black Hawk Regulations. 

 Preliminary Plans for Public Improvements. 

 Quantities Estimates for Public Improvements including an 8-1/2 x 11” location map. 

 Subdivision Agreement (SA) Information Sheet, if the SA is to be signed by someone other than the current owner of 

the property. 

 A written legal description prepared by a registered land surveyor. 

 Storm Water Management Plan (SWAMP). 

 Other forms and applications: 

               
              
              
               



14



Existing Signage

Existing Signage

C-PS09

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Polygon



170%13

1.70 1277



zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle



zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle



1277

C-PS09 Win Me! - BannerSee page 15 2'x8' 2 Not Illuminated East parking lot this sign area does not count
toward total sign area 32"

zeljko
Text Box
754

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
15

zeljko
Text Box
754

zeljko
Text Box
32

zeljko
Text Box
Number of signs utilized 



















C-PS09



2 
 
f
e
e
t 
 

h
i 
g
h 

8 feet long 



RESOLUTION 48-2014 

A RESOLUTION 

CONDITIONALLY 

APPROVING A 

CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR 

A COMPREHENSIVE SIGN 

PLAN FOR THE 

CANYON CASINO 



 

1 
 6/16/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\CANYON SIGN COFA-1.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 COUNTY OF GILPIN 

 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

 Resolution No. 48-2014 
 

TITLE: A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CERTIFICATE OF 

APPROPRIATENESS FOR A COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN FOR THE 

CANYON CASINO  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The City Council hereby determines to approve the Certificate of 

Appropriateness for the Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Canyon Casino upon the satisfaction of 

the following conditions: 

 

A. Prior to issuance of any Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits for any sign 

along Main Street that may project into the public right-of-way, a survey must be 

completed to verify whether a license agreement pertaining to said sign shall be 

processed and approved by City Council; 

 

B. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and 

approved prior to the installation of any new signs; 

 

C. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the 

Comprehensive Sign Plan indicating the following:  Only the signs graphically depicted 

within this approved Comprehensive Sign Plan are allowed. No additional signs can be 

added on this property without an approval from authorized City of Black Hawk 

representative or City Council, depending on the process to permit additional signage; 

 

D. The Applicant shall provide a detail for the banner installation technique 

and place such detail on a new sheet 11 of the Comprehensive Sign Plan; 

 

E. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 11 of the 

Comprehensive Sign Plan indicating the following:  This Comprehensive Sign Plan will 

permit the use of the banner sign for 30 consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a 

total of 180 days; and 

 



 

2 
 6/16/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\CANYON SIGN COFA-1.DOC 

F. A portable sidewalk sign currently in place shall not be permitted to be 

utilized because such signs are prohibited pursuant Section 15-3 of the City of Black 

Hawk Sign Code. 

  

RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David D. Spellman, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Greiner, City Clerk 



CITY OF BLACK HAWK 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: June 25, 2014 

 

SUBJECT: Certificate of Appropriateness Approval for a Comprehensive Sign Plan  

On May 20, 2014, the City of Black Hawk received an application for a Certificate of 

Appropriateness for a Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP) from Tom Moore, Canyon Casino Chief 

Financial Officer.  Attached is the staff report explaining the CSP.  Please refer to the staff report 

for a summary of the proposed CSP. 

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

Section 15-13 (Sign Code) of the Municipal Code regulates the need for Comprehensive Sign 

Plans (CSP).  Section 16-368 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code regulates the Certificate of 

Appropriateness procedures.  This application requests approval of a CSP with 318.68 square 

feet of sign area with 47 signs.   

 

The applicant has chosen to include a banner sign in this proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan 

(CSP). This CSP will permit the use of the banner sign 30 consecutive days 6 time periods per 

year, or total of 180 days. A permanent location and sign frame has been identified on the casino 

building as required by the newly approved Sign Code. 

 

The Comprehensive Sign Plan, when submitted, also identified a portable “sandwich board” sign 

that would be placed on the sidewalk. This type of sign is not a permitted/allowed type of sign 

according to Section 15-3 of the City of Black Hawk Sign Code. The proposed sign has been 

removed from the Canyon Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan. Staff has proposed a condition that 

this type of sign cannot be utilized for advertisement by the Canyon Casino following the 

approval of the Canyon Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Baseline staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE WITH 

CONDITIONS a Certificate of Appropriateness for a Comprehensive Sign Plan as submitted 

and included with this staff report with the following conditions: 

 

1. Prior to issuance of any Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits for any sign along Main 

Street that may project into the public right-of-way, a survey must be completed to verify 

whether a license agreement pertaining to said sign shall be processed and approved by 

City Council. 

2. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and approved prior to 

the installation of any new signs.  

3. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the CSP indicating the 

following; Only the signs graphically depicted within this approved Comprehensive Sign 

Plan are allowed. No additional signs can be added on this property without an approval 

from authorized City of Black Hawk representative or City Council, depending on the 

process to permit additional signage. 

4. The applicant needs to provide a detail for the banner installation technique and place 

such detail on a new sheet 11 of the CSP.  

5. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 11 of the CSP indicating the 

following;  This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of the banner sign for 30 

consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 days. 

6. A portable sidewalk sign currently in place shall not be permitted to be utilized since 

such signs are not permitted according to the City of Black Haw Sign Code Section 15-3.  

 



 

RESOLUTION DATE:     June 25, 2014 

ORIGINATED BY: Tom Moore, Canyon Casino CFO  

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation  

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: Staff Report, Notice, and applicant’s 

application 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:     [ ] Yes     [X]No     [  ]N/A 

INITIALS__________ 

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY: 

 
            6-13-14        

Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation     Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 

mgreiner
Lewis Signature



Staff Report 

  



1 

  

CITY OF BLACK HAWK                  Date prepared: June 13, 2014 

PLANNING / LAND USE                 Meeting Date: June 25, 2014 

 

STAFF REPORT: Certificate of Appropriateness for a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the 

Canyon Casino (P-14-13) 
For:     City Council 

Project: Canyon Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan  

Property Address: 131 Main Street 

Applicants: Tom Moore behalf of Canyon Casino 

Zoning:  GOLD District  

Prepared by:  Zeljko Spiric, Baseline Corporation  

Approved by:  Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation  

Reviewed by:  Cynthia Linker, CP&D 

 

 

BACKGROUND:   
On May 20, 2014, the City of Black Hawk received an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 

for a Canyon Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP) from Tom Moore, Chief Financial Officer, on 

behalf of the Canyon Casino. The intent of this submittal is to create a plan that will include existing 

signs on the casino and permit the use of the allowed banner sign. The banner was previously used as 

part of the Canyon Casino's advertisement and the Casino would like to continue to do so. The current 

City of Black Hawk Sign Code requires that a Comprehensive Sign Plan be filed with the City to permit 

banner use on a business property. No new permanent signs are proposed at this time. Attached to this 

staff report is a copy of the CSP document that catalogues all existing signs in addition to the banner. 

The Canyon Casino is permitted 191 sq. ft. of sign area without a CSP and 324.7 sq.ft. (with the 70% 

additional allowance) with a CSP per the existing sign code (Chapter 15 of the Municipal Code).  

 

In total, Canyon Casino utilizes 47 signs of varying sizes with a total sign area of 318.68 square feet. 

The majority of the signs are window signs and awning lettering. All window signs conform to the 

current regulation that allows not more than 25% of any window pane to be covered by a sign.  

 

In addition to the window signs, the CSP identifies several wall signs and a banner sign. The banner 

sign, per the City of Black Hawk Sign Code, will not be counted toward the total sign area of the 

proposed CSP.  

  

The Comprehensive Sign Plan also identifies a portable sign that would be placed on the sidewalk. 

These types of signs are not permitted according to the City of Black Hawk Sign Code Section 15-3. 

This sign was removed from the Canyon Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan. Staff has proposed a 

condition that this sign cannot be utilized for advertisement by the Canyon Casino following the 

approval of the Canyon Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan. 

   

The signs are placed at various spots on the building façade (see Images 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5).  

 

Excerpts from the proposed CSP, indicating the proposed signs and their locations, have been included 

below.  

 



2 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Image 1: Casino Signs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Image 2: Casino Signs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Image 3: Casino Signs 

 

Casino Signs 



3 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Image 4: Casino Signs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Image 5: Casino Sign Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sign Locations 



4 

  

APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS: 

The proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan has been reviewed by staff for compliance with Chapter 15 

(Sign Code – Sign Regulations) of the Black Hawk Municipal Code. 

 

Section 15-13 (Sign Code) of the Municipal Code regulates the need for Comprehensive Sign Plans 

(CSP). This staff report relates the need for City Council to review and take action on the proposed 

Comprehensive Sign Plan. The Black Hawk Municipal Code requires a public hearing necessitating a 

notice in the paper and posting of the property. Both the notification and posting have been completed.  

 

The CSP is provided by the City of Black Hawk Municipal Code to offer more flexibility with the 

number, size, proportion and balance of signs. The City of Black Hawk Municipal Code permits a total 

allowable square footage of signage to be calculated at one square foot per linear foot of building 

frontage. Each building is allowed a minimum of 128 sq.ft. if the subject building has less than 128 feet 

of building frontage. When a property owner elects to pursue a CSP, they are allowed a total signage 

area calculated at 135% of the total allowed sign area. An additional 35% of sign area is permitted for 

those CSPs that propose utilization of Electronic Message Centers (EMC). Therefore, the total sign area 

proposed may be a maximum of one-hundred and seventy percent (170%) of the permitted sign area 

allowed on the subject property, if all requirements are met. Excerpts from the Black Hawk Code as they 

relate to the regulation of Comprehensive Sign Plans are included below. The regulations that are 

particular to this submittal have been provided along with staff comments.   

 

The total sign area for the proposed CSP is 318.68 square feet. The total maximum permitted sign area is 

324.7 square feet. The area was calculated using the 1.70 factor since this plan proposes an EMC sign.  

Below is an evaluation of the CSP review. 

 

 

The City of Black Hawk 

Municipal Code 

Chapter 15 – Sign Code 

Article IV – Sign Regulations 
 

Sec. 15-13.Comprehensive Sign Plans. The Comprehensive Sign Plan is the device and process 

employed by the City to ensure an appropriate balance between building architecture, signage and 

neighborhood aesthetics. This Section assumes that strict compliance with preceding sections of this 

Chapter provides effective signage for smaller properties and developments and meets community goals 

for appearance and safety. However, as developments grow in size, opportunities for more effective 

signage increases. Larger sites offer opportunities for alternative regulation of the number, size, 

proportion and balance of signs according to alternative standards consistent with the types of 

establishments, state of the art technology and their approved architecture character. 

 

Sec. 15-13(b) Applicability. 

 

(1) Any building located in a nonresidential district wanting to have additional sign area than 

allowed in a Standard Sign Plan and wanting the ability to utilize special event banners and signs for 

any special event as defined in the Black Hawk Municipal Code. The regulations governing a Certificate 



5 

  

of Appropriateness can be found in Section 16-368 (City Council historic review process) of the Black 

Hawk Municipal Code. 

 

(2) Comprehensive Sign Plans are not permitted within Residential Districts as defined by this 

Chapter. 

 

Sec. 15-13 (c) Application filing. Applications for Comprehensive Sign Plans shall be submitted to the 

Planning Department. 

 

Staff Comment: The applicant has chosen to voluntarily prepare a Comprehensive Sign Plan for 

the Canyon Casino.  

 

Sec. 15-13 (d) Submittal requirements. 

 

(1) Applicants must submit a detailed Comprehensive Sign Plan with attached written 

stipulations for review and approval. Such stipulations shall consider all appropriate 

concerns including, but not limited to, the following items: location, relationship of signs to 

adjacent properties, size, height, color, lighting, technology options, orientation, 

construction materials and typography. 

 

(2) Comprehensive Sign Plans shall include: 

 

a. All signs, their location in site plan format, and color renderings of the proposed 

signage. Where sign lighting will have a significant impact on the visual interpretation of 

the sign, color renderings should be submitted to show the effects of the proposed signs 

and lighting. 

 

b. Dimensions of each proposed sign listed in a chart summarizing the total area of each 

and all proposed signs together with the total allowed sign area for the property. The 

height above grade shall be indicated for blade signs and freestanding signs. 

 

c. A statement as to the calculation of the allowed sign area based on the appropriate 

building frontage length for the building. 

 

d. The site plan shall include the property lines of the subject site in order to determine 

that all signage is contained on the property. 

 

Sec. 15-13 (e) Submittal requirements. In case of projecting or blade signs that utilize the airspace 

above public right-of-way, a license agreement will be generated by the City of Black Hawk for the 

applicant to review and it shall be reviewed for approval by City Council. 

 

Staff Comment: All above regulations have been fulfilled. 
 

Sec. 15-13(f) No minimum or maximum standards are established for the Comprehensive Sign Plan, 

except as follows:  

 



6 

  

(1) The total sign area proposed may not exceed one hundred and thirty-five percent (135%) of the 

permitted sign area allowed on the subject property as calculated and regulated in Section 15-

61. An additional thirty-five percent (35%) of sign area may be granted to a Comprehensive Sign 

Plan if the application includes the use of electronic message signs (EMS). Therefore, the total 

sign area proposed may be a maximum of one-hundred and seventy percent (170%) of the 

permitted sign area allowed on the subject property, if all requirements are met. 

 

(2) Permanent window signage shall meet the requirements as set forth in Section 15-43(8). 

 

(3) Temporary Banner Sign and Special Event Signs: 

a. Temporary Banner Sign: One temporary vinyl style banner sign is allowed only if included in 

an approved Comprehensive Sign Plan. A temporary banner sign shall not count toward the 

maximum sign area permitted for a given business and shall adhere to the following regulations: 

 

1. There shall not be more than one (1) Temporary Banner Sign attached to the building; 

and 

2. Such sign shall be placed in the approved designated display location on the building 

and shall be constructed out of high quality material; and 

3. Such sign shall be allowed to be made of flexible plastic, cardboard, vinyl, fabric or 

similar non-rigid water-proof material; and 

4. Such sign shall be attached in an inconspicuous manner without zip ties, ropes or 

other similar visible material; and 

5. Such sign shall be adhered to the building with grommets and be attached with nuts, 

bolts or other similar non-visible fasteners; and 

6. Such sign shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet in size; and 

7. Placement of such sign shall be allowed for thirty (30) consecutive days, six (6) times 

in a calendar year as specified by the business owner and proper notification to the 

Planning Department for such days. 

 

Staff Comment: The Canyon Casino property abuts public right-of-way along Main Street. In 

total, the building façade on the subject property abuts 191 linear feet of public right-of-way. Per 

code, buildings with frontage longer than 128 feet may convert their frontage to sign area using a 

1 linear foot to 1 square foot ratio. Based on the above regulation, the Canyon Casino is permitted 

191 sq.ft. of sign area. In addition, the Canyon Casino is permitted an additional 70% of sign area 

for utilizing a CSP and implementing Electronic Message Center signs. With the additional sign 

area, the maximum sign area permitted for the Canyon CSP is 324.7 square feet.  

 

Sec. 15-13(g) The Comprehensive Sign Plan shall be reviewed in terms of its impact on surrounding 

land uses and its compatibility with the purposes of this Chapter and with other City planning and 

zoning programs and regulations. 

 

Sec. 15-13(i) Council review and approval. Within sixty (60) days of receipt of a complete application, 

the Council shall act to approve, approve with conditions or deny the application. The comprehensive 

sign plan shall be approved if: 

 



7 

  

(1) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will provide signage more compatible with the 

surrounding development and designed with a high quality appearance; and 

 

Staff Comment: The proposed signs are compatible with the other business signs that surround 

the property in the heart of Black Hawk’s gaming district.   
 

(2) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will result in architecture and graphics of a scale 

appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood and development area; and 

 

Staff Comment: The proposed signs are compatible with surrounding properties in terms of size 

and scale. The signs do not over-encumber the façade of the subject building and complements the 

existing architecture.  
  

(3) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will provide signage consistent with the 

architecture and site plan characteristics of the proposed or existing project; and 

 

Staff Comment: Existing signs are consistent in both size and form with the architecture and site 

characteristics.  
 

(4) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will be materially beneficial in achieving the 

goals and objectives of the City's standards that relate to community design and aesthetics; and 

 

Staff Comment: The proposed signs meet the objectives of the City’s standards and match existing 

approved aesthetics.  
 

(5) Implementation of the comprehensive sign plan will be materially beneficial in achieving the 

goals and objectives cited in the purpose of the Sign Code; and 

 

Staff Comment: The proposed sign plan meets the purpose of the comprehensive sign plan 

program. 
 

Sec. 15-13(j) Modifications: Once authorized by the Council, a Comprehensive Sign Plan may be 

modified through the following procedure: 

 

(1) Regardless of size, any building with a Comprehensive Sign Plan will require an approval, 

either by City Council or Administrative, to make changes to the said plan. 

a. City Council approval is required for changes to a Comprehensive Sign Plan for major 

modifications (changes to greater than 10% of the initial approved Comprehensive Sign Plan 

sign area) as long as the total sign area allowed is not exceeded. 

 

b. Administrative approval is required for changes to signs including minor modifications 

(changes to 10% or less of the initial approved Comprehensive Sign Plan sign area). 

 

Staff Comment: A previous Comprehensive Sign Plan existed for the Canyon Casino. In light of 

the recent Sign Code changes, most specifically related to the ‘banner’ proposed/allowed, the 

client has decided to prepare a CSP.  



8 

  

  

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff from Baseline Corporation has reviewed and evaluated the prepared Comprehensive Sign Plan 

provided for the Canyon Casino and finds the document to be in compliance with the regulations 

established in Sec. 15-13(f), which states that the total sign area used may not exceed one hundred and 

seventy percent (170%) of the permitted sign area. The CSP document includes approximately 318.68 

total sq.ft. of sign area. The total permitted sign area for the Canyon Casino, based on building street 

frontage, is 324.7 sq.ft.  

 

The applicant has chosen to include a banner sign in this proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP). 

This CSP will permit the use of the banner sign 30 consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a 

total of 180 days. A permanent location and sign frame have been identified by the Casino as required 

by the Sign Code.  The applicant needs to provide a detail for the banner installation technique and place 

such detail on a new sheet 11 of the CSP.  A condition is has been added to the recommendation of 

approval.  

 

Also, staff has identified one LED sign that may project into the City owned right-of-way along Main 

Street.  To confirm if the sign projects into the City owned right-of-way the owner of the Canyon Casino 

will need to provide a property boundary survey of the Casino. And, if the survey determines that there 

is an encroachment, a license agreement between the City of Black Hawk and Canyon Casino will need 

to be prepared to adequately describe the encroachment. The agreement shall, in addition to the blade 

sign, include any additional signs that may be encroaching into the right-of-way. A condition to this 

need is also included. 

 

The Comprehensive Sign Plan submitted with this application also identified a portable “sandwich 

board” style sign that would be placed on the sidewalk. This type of sign is not permitted according to 

the City of Black Hawk Sign Code Section 15-3. This portable sign was removed from the Canyon 

Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan. Staff has proposed a condition that this sign cannot be utilized for 

advertisement by the Canyon Casino following the approval of the Canyon Casino Comprehensive Sign 

Plan. 

 

Staff recommends that the proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Canyon Casino be approved and 

a Certificate of Appropriateness be granted, subject to conditions as follows: 

 

1. Prior to issuance of any Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits for any sign along Main Street 

that may project into the public right-of-way, a survey must be completed to verify whether a 

license agreement pertaining to said sign shall be processed and approved by the City Council. 

2. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and approved prior to the 

installation of any new signs.  

3. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the CSP indicating the following; 

Only the signs graphically depicted within this approved Comprehensive Sign Plan are allowed. 

No additional signs can be added on this property without an approval from authorized City of 

Black Hawk representative or City Council, depending on the process to permit additional 

signage. 

4. The applicant needs to provide a detail for the banner installation technique and place such detail 

on a new sheet 11 of the CSP.  



9 

  

5. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 11 of the CSP indicating the following;  

This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of this banner sign for 30 consecutive days for 

6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 days. 

6. A portable sidewalk sign currently in place shall not be permitted to be utilized since such signs 

are not permitted according to the City of Black Haw Sign Code Section 15-3.  

 

FINDINGS: 
Within sixty (60) days of receipt of a complete application, the City Council may approve, conditionally 

approve, or deny the application for Comprehensive Sign Plan. Sections 15-13 (a) Purpose and (b) 

Applicability provide the ability of the property owner to submit the application. Following are findings 

that can be referred to relate to the criteria in Section 15-13 (i): 

 

(1) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will provide signage that is compatible with 

the surrounding development and designed with a high quality appearance; and 

 

(2) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will result in architecture and graphics of a 

scale appropriate for the surrounding neighborhood and development area; and 

 

(3) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will provide signage consistent with the 

architecture and site plan characteristics of the proposed or existing project; and 

 

(4) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will be materially beneficial in achieving 

the goals and objectives of the City's standards that relate to community design and aesthetics; 

and 

 

(5) Implementation of the Comprehensive Sign Plan will be materially beneficial in achieving 

the goals and objectives cited in the purpose of the Sign Code.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Baseline Staff recommends City Council consider a MOTION TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS 

a Certificate of Appropriateness for a Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Canyon Casino as submitted and 

included with this staff report. The conditions are as follows: 

  

1. Prior to issuance of any Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits for any sign along Main 

Street that may project into the public right-of-way, a survey must be completed to verify 

whether a license agreement pertaining to said sign shall be processed and approved by the City 

Council. 

2. Proper Building, Electrical, and Sign Permits shall be applied for and approved prior to 

the installation of any new signs.  

3. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 1 of the CSP indicating the 

following; Only the signs graphically depicted within this approved Comprehensive Sign Plan 

are allowed. No additional signs can be added on this property without an approval from 

authorized City of Black Hawk representative or City Council, depending on the process to 

permit additional signage. 

4. The applicant needs to provide a detail for the banner installation technique and place 

such detail on a new sheet 11 of the CSP.  



10 

  

5. The Applicant shall be required to add a note on page 11 of the CSP indicating the 

following;  This Comprehensive Sign Plan will permit the use of the banner sign for 30 

consecutive days for 6 time periods per year, or a total of 180 days. 

6. A portable sidewalk sign currently in place shall not be permitted to be utilized since 

such signs are not permitted according to the City of Black Haw Sign Code Section 15-3.  

 

 

 

Attachments:   

● Land Development Application Form 

● Comprehensive Sign Plan document 

 



11 

  

Applicant's Submittal 

 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the City of Black Hawk Zoning Ordinance that 

the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen shall hold a public hearing concerning a 

Certificate of Appropriateness for the Canyon Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan. This 

property is described in Exhibit A below and is generally located at 131 Main Street. 

 

The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen on 

Wednesday, June 25, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter. The public 

hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers located at 211 Church 

Street, Black Hawk, Colorado, 80422, or at such other time or place in the event these 

hearings are adjourned. 

 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES  

MAY ATTEND 

 

Kelly Stevens 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

Exhibit A 

 

131 Main Street –  

  

S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 037 Lot: 005 THRU:- Lot: 008, Subd: 

BLACK HAWK Block: 036 Lot: 007 THRU:- Lot: 012 (E 10 FT OF LT 5) & IMPS 

AND S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 037 Lot: 009 AND:- Lot: 010 

(EXC PT DESC 265/461) & IMPS 

 

















Canyon Casino Sign List 

 
Type Quantity Copy  Illumination Size 

 #1 Banner Sign 1 Changing  None 32 sq.ft 

#2 Wall Sign 1 Grand Plateau None 13.31 sq.ft 

#3 Wall Sign 1 Changing  None 5 sq.ft 

#4 Window Sign 1 Canyon Casino Indirect 1.03 sq.ft 

#5 Window Sign 1 
Hours of 

Operation Indirect 0.36 sq.ft 

#6 Awning Lettering 1 Canyon Casino None 1.92 sq.ft 

#7 LED sign 1 Changing  Internal Illumination 80.5 sq.ft 

#8 Window Sign 10 Canyon Casino Indirect 16.3 sq.ft 

#9 
Door - Window Insert 

Sign 6 Canyon Casino Indirect 9.72 sq.ft 

#10 
Door - Window Insert 

Sign 4 Canyon Casino Indirect 3 sq.ft 

#11 Awning Lettering 9 Canyon Casino None 22.68 sq.ft 

#12 Wall Sign  1 Canyon Intenal Illumination 51.25 sq.ft 

#13 Wall Sign  1 Canyon Casino Internal Illumination 72 sq.ft 

#14 Trash Can Wrap 6 Canyon Casino None 22.5 sq.ft 

#15 Door Sign 1 
Hours of 

Operation None 0.36 sq.ft 

#17 Projecting Sign 2 Canyon Internal Illumination 18.75 sq.ft 

       Total 
 

47 
  

318.68 
 



zeljko
Polygon

zeljko
Line

zeljko
Line

zeljko
Line

zeljko
Line

zeljko
Typewritten Text
191'

zeljko
Callout
#1

zeljko
Callout
#2

zeljko
Callout
#3

zeljko
Callout
#4

zeljko
Callout
#5

zeljko
Callout
#6&7

zeljko
Callout
#8

zeljko
Callout
#9

zeljko
Callout
#10

zeljko
Callout
#11

zeljko
Callout
#12

zeljko
Callout
#13

zeljko
Callout
#14

zeljko
Callout
#15

zeljko
Callout
#16









zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Rectangle

zeljko
Text Box
15

zeljko
Text Box
16

zeljko
Text Box
17

zeljko
Rectangle







PURCHASE OF NEW 

STREET SWEEPER 



mgreiner
Lewis Signature







TRAFFIC SIGNAL 

TIMING STUDY 



mgreiner
Lewis Signature

































271 CHURCH STREET 

CONSTRUCTION BID AND 

PROJECT BUDGET 

RECOMMENDATION 

FOR LIMITED 

REHABILITATION GRANT 



Z:\CityClerk Shared\2014 Packet Assembly\2014-6-25\PDF Versions\271 Church Street\RFCA for 271 Church Bid 

Approval_062514.docx 

1 

 
CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING:       June 25, 2014 

 

SUBJECT:   
Approval of the total base construction bid and project budget for the limited rehabilitation of the historic 

home and property located at 271 Church Street.   

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

On June 13, 2014, Consilium Partners received bids from two pre-qualified general contractors.  Attached 

is the bid analysis summary, which includes a breakdown of costs from MW Golden Constructors. and 

Whitestone Construction Services, Inc.  Both contractors provided complete bid packages at the time of 

submission.  Certain clarifications to both bids were requested by Consilium Partners and returned in a 

timely manner. 

 

The most significant differences between the bids are total base bid cost and the cost of alternates.  The 

attached bid analysis summary includes cost categories for the total base bid, the cost of alternates to the 

project, and total base bid including alternates.  Please note that all alternates are the responsibility of the 

homeowner if selected.  Upon “Notice of Award”, the homeowner shall deposit into a non-interest 

bearing City escrow account an amount equal to the cost of the alternates selected by the homeowner.  

Overall project schedule duration provided by both contractors is approximately 3.5 months.   

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Based on the bids received and the attached bid analysis summary, Whitestone Construction Services, 

Inc. is the lowest, most responsible and responsive bidder.  Consilium Partners has reviewed the bid 

package with the grant applicant and they concur.   

 

RESOLUTION DATE:     June 25, 2014 

 

ORIGINATED BY: Consilium Partners  

 

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Cynthia Linker, CP&D Administrator 

 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: Bid Analysis Summary 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW:     [ ] Yes    [ X ]No  [  ]N/A 

INITIALS__________ 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 

    

Jessica Killian  06/18/14    6/20/14   

Jessica Killian, Senior Project Manager   Jack D. Lewis, City Manager 

Consilium Partners     City of Black Hawk 

 



Z:\CityClerk Shared\2014 Packet Assembly\2014-6-25\PDF Versions\271 Church Street\RFCA for 271 Church Bid 

Approval_062514.docx 

2 

 

271 Church Street Bid Analysis Summary 

 

  
MW Golden 

Construction 
Whitestone Construction 

    

 Exterior Direct Cost Subtotal (Divisions 2 - 16) $135,131 $64,548 

Interior Direct Cost Subtotal (Divisions 2 - 16) $69,843 $43,933 

General Conditions Subtotal $166,738 $83,219 

Total Base Bid $371,712 $191,700 

Alternate #1a: Upgrade Cabinetry Drawer/Door Style $2,559 $220 

Alternate #1b: Upgrade Cabinetry Drawer/Door Finish $2,661 $0 

Alternate #1c: All Plywood Construction $2,865 $2,500 

Alternate #1d: Beadboard Backsplash $593 $700 

Alternate #1e: Glass Upper Cabinet Doors $3,195 $1,800 

Alternate #1f: Light Valances $958 $200 

Alternate #1g: Toe Molding $429 $200 

Alternate #1h: Laundry Cabinet Finish $594 $0 

Alternate #2: Upgrade West Property Fence $4,158 $1,200 

Alternate #3: Add Storm Door at Door #4 $1,815 $850 

Alternate #4: Colored Concrete at West Swale $595 $500 

Total Homeowner Alternate Costs $20,422 $8,170 

Total Adjusted Base Bid + Homeowner Alternates $392,134 $199,870 

Proposed Start Date 7/7/2014 6/27/2014 

Proposed Completion Date 10/3/2014 10/3/2014 

Total Number of Calendar Days 99 98 

Change Order Overhead & Profit 15% 20.0% 

 



Bid Summary
MW Golden Construction Whitestone Construction

Exterior Direct Cost Subtotal (Divisions 2 - 16) $135,131 $64,548

Interior Direct Cost Subtotal (Divisions 2 - 16) $69,843 $43,933

General Conditions Subtotal $166,738 $83,219

Total Base Bid $371,712 $191,700

Alternate #1a: Upgrade Cabinetry Drawer/Door Style $2,559 $220

Alternate #1b: Upgrade Cabinetry Drawer/Door Finish $2,661 $0

Alternate #1c: All Plywood Construction $2,865 $2,500

Alternate #1d: Beadboard Backsplash $593 $700

Alternate #1e: Glass Upper Cabinet Doors $3,195 $1,800

Alternate #1f: Light Valances $958 $200

Alternate #1g: Toe Molding $429 $200

Alternate #1h: Laundry Cabinet Finish $594 $0

Alternate #2: Upgrade West Property Fence $4,158 $1,200

Alternate #3: Add Storm Door at Door #4 $1,815 $850

Alternate #4: Colored Concrete at West Swale $595 $500

Total Homeowner Alternate Costs $20,422 $8,170

Total Adjusted Base Bid + Homeowner Alternates $392,134 $199,870

Proposed Start Date 7/7/2014 6/27/2014

Proposed Completion Date 10/3/2014 10/3/2014

Total Number of Calendar Days 99 98

Change Order Overhead & Profit 15% 20.0%

Page 1



Exterior

Item
Subcontractor Name or 

by GC
Total Item Value Item

Subcontractor Name or 

by GC
Total Item Value

DIVISION 1 - GENERAL CONDITIONS DIVISION 1 - GENERAL CONDITIONS

Detail Provided in General Conditions Worksheet by GC 105,045$                         Detail Provided in General Conditions Worksheet by GC $49,517

Subtotal Division 1 - General Conditions $105,045 Subtotal Division 1 - General Conditions $49,517

DIVISION 2 - SITEWORK DIVISION 2 - SITEWORK

Site Access N/A -$                                 Site Access by GC $1,500

Demolition Marrow and Sons 1,084$                             Demolition by GC $3,296

Grading & Excavating Marrow and Sons/ Colorado Asphalt 2,500$                             Grading & Excavating by GC & Rock & Co $2,832

Drain Pipe Marrow and Sons 3,500$                             Drain Pipe by GC $1,250

Remove Extra Dirt from Site N/A -$                                 Remove Extra Dirt from Site by GC $750

Top Soil N/A -$                                 Top Soil by GC - Reduced $1,000

Landscaping N/A -$                                 Landscaping by GC - Reduced $1,500

Tree Removal N/A -$                                 Tree Removal by GC $1,120

Concrete Splash Block In 7 -$                                 Concrete Splash Block by GC $200

Subtotal Division 2 - Sitework $7,084 Subtotal Division 2 - Sitework $14,948

DIVISION 3 - CONCRETE DIVISION 3 - CONCRETE

Drainage Swale Chevcon Structures 8,500$                             Drainage Swale by GC $5,350

Subtotal Division 3 - Concrete $8,500 Subtotal Division 3 - Concrete $5,350

DIVISION 4 - MASONRY DIVISION 4 - MASONRY

New Stone Retaining Walls Rock and CO 18,717$                           New Stone Retaining Walls Rock & Co $10,560

Existing Stone Retaining Walls Repair Rock and CO 4,237$                             Existing Stone Retaining Walls Repair L & M Masonry $1,200

Brick Wall Repair Rock and CO 9,258$                             Brick Wall Repair L & M Masonry $2,200

Subtotal Division 4 - Masonry $32,212 Subtotal Division 4 - Masonry $13,960

DIVISION 5 - METALS DIVISION 5 - METALS

Handrail Front Range Metalworks $690 Handrail Pale Hourse Metal Fab $400

Ornamental Guardrail Front Range Metalworks $7,310 Ornamental Guardrail Pale Hourse Metal Fab $9,700

Ornamental Wire Fence Front Range Metalworks $1,760 Ornamental Wire Fence Pale Hourse Metal Fab $1,875

Subtotal Division 5 - Metals $9,760 Subtotal Division 5 - Metals $11,975

All Exterior Work (Funded By Preservation Easement)

MW GOLDEN

All Exterior Work (Funded By Preservation Easement)

WHITESTONE CONSTRUCTION

Page 2



Exterior

All Exterior Work (Funded By Preservation Easement)

MW GOLDEN

All Exterior Work (Funded By Preservation Easement)

WHITESTONE CONSTRUCTION

DIVISION 6 - WOOD DIVISION 6 - WOOD

Framing Lumber (Studs, Beams, etc) MW GOLDEN CONSTRUCTORS 4,218$                                  Framing Lumber (Studs, Beams, etc) by GC $0

Soffit N/A -$                                     Soffit by GC

Fascia N/A -$                                     Fascia by GC - Increased $1,000

Exterior Lap Siding & Trim Replacement MW GOLDEN CONSTRUCTORS 19,490$                                Exterior Lap Siding & Trim Replacement by GC $500

Existing Exterior Wood Restoration MW GOLDEN CONSTRUCTORS 12,959$                                Existing Exterior Wood Restoration w/ painting

Wood Guardrail Repair/Replacement MW GOLDEN CONSTRUCTORS 8,060$                                  Wood Guardrail Repair/Replacement by GC - Increased $2,000

Subtotal Division 6 - Wood $44,726 Subtotal Division 6 - Wood $2,000

DIVISION 7 - THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION DIVISION 7 - THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION

Soffit Vents MW GOLDEN CONSTRUCTORS 870$                                 Soffit Vents by GC $675

Gutters & Downspouts MB Roofing 6,592$                              Gutters & Downspouts TBD - probably Horsman Seemless $2,460

Asphaltic Waterproofing MW GOLDEN CONSTRUCTORS 2,327$                              Asphaltic Waterproofing by GC - includes SM flashing $2,500

Subtotal Division 7 - Thermal & Moisture Protection $9,789 Subtotal Division 7 - Thermal & Moisture Protection $5,635

DIVISION 8 - DOORS & WINDOWS DIVISION 8 - DOORS & WINDOWS

Exterior Storm Doors & Hardware MW GOLDEN CONSTRUCTORS 3,710$                                  Exterior Storm Doors & Hardware by GC $2,750

Subtotal Division 8 - Doors & Windows $3,710 Subtotal Division 8 - Doors & Windows $2,750

DIVISION 9 - FINISHES DIVISION 9 - FINISHES

Exterior Painting & Staining - House and Deck Roschak Painting 15,965$                                Exterior Painting & Staining - House and Deck Continental Color $5,580

Exterior Painting - Guardrail Roschak Painting 2,000$                                  Exterior Painting - Guardrail Continental Color $1,000

Subtotal Division 9 - Finishes $17,965 Subtotal Division 9 - Finishes $6,580

DIVISION 15 - MECHANICAL DIVISION 15 - MECHANICAL

New BBQ Gas Line Epic Plumbing and Heating 635$                                     New BBQ Gas Line Nothnagle $750

Subtotal Division 15 - Mechanical $635 Subtotal Division 15 - Mechanical $750

DIVISION 16 - ELECTRICAL DIVISION 16 - ELECTRICAL

Site Lighting Magee Electric 750$                                     Site Lighting Rolly's Elec. $600

Subtotal Division 16 - Electrical $750 Subtotal Division 16 - Electrical $600

Exterior Direct Cost Total (Divisions 2 - 16) $135,131 Exterior Direct Cost Total (Divisions 2 - 16) $64,548

Exterior Total Cost (Including GCs & OH&P) $240,176 Exterior Total Cost (Including GCs & OH&P) $114,065

Page 3



Interior

Item
Subcontractor Name or 

by GC
Total Item Value Item

Subcontractor Name 

or 

by GC

Total Item Value

DIVISION 1 - GENERAL CONDITIONS DIVISION 1 - GENERAL CONDITIONS

Detail Provided in General Conditions Worksheet by GC $61,693 Detail Provided in General Conditions Worksheet by GC $33,702

Subtotal Division 1 - General Conditions $61,693 Subtotal Division 1 - General Conditions $33,702

DIVISION 2 - SITEWORK DIVISION 2 - SITEWORK

Demolition MW GOLDEN CONSTRUCTORS $2,750 Demolition by GC $1,120

Subtotal Division 2 - Sitework $2,750 Subtotal Division 2 - Sitework $1,120

DIVISION 6 - WOOD DIVISION 6 - WOOD

Interior Door Trim Columbine Kitchen and Bath $850 Interior Door Trim by GC - includes base $1,450

Crown Molding Columbine Kitchen and Bath $5,227 Crown Molding by GC $2,750

Subtotal Division 6 - Wood $6,077 Subtotal Division 6 - Wood $4,200

DIVISION 8 - DOORS & WINDOWS DIVISION 8 - DOORS & WINDOWS

Interior Doors & Hardware Columbine Kitchen and Bath $2,066 Interior Doors & Hardware by GC $1,650

Subtotal Division 8 - Doors & Windows $2,066 Subtotal Division 8 - Doors & Windows $1,650

DIVISION 9 - FINISHES DIVISION 9 - FINISHES

Flooring Eastco $1,794 Flooring Lissome $943

Backsplash Eastco $1,781 Backsplash Lissome $1,440

Countertops In Division 11 $0 Countertops by GC $4,200

Interior Painting & Staining Roschak Painting $12,019 Interior Painting & Staining by GC - includes drywall $2,700

Subtotal Division 9 - Finishes $15,594 Subtotal Division 9 - Finishes $9,283

All Interior Work (Funded By Rehabilitation Grant)

MW GOLDEN

All Interior Work (Funded By Rehabilitation Grant)

WHITESTONE CONSTRUCTION

Page 4



Interior

All Interior Work (Funded By Rehabilitation Grant)

MW GOLDEN

All Interior Work (Funded By Rehabilitation Grant)

WHITESTONE CONSTRUCTION

DIVISION 11 - EQUIPMENT DIVISION 11 - EQUIPMENT

Equipment Installation MWGC/ Magee $2,670 Equipment Installation by GC $880

Subtotal Division 11 - Equipment $2,670 Subtotal Division 11 - Equipment $880

DIVISION 12 - FURNISHINGS DIVISION 12 - FURNISHINGS

Manufactured Cabinetry - Kitchen Manufactured Cabinetry - Kitchen Material by Home depot

Materials Columbine Kitchen and Bath $25,121 Materials by GC - Reduced $16,400

Labor Columbine Kitchen and Bath $2,360 Labor by GC $3,050

Manufactured Cabinetry - Laundry Manufactured Cabinetry - Laundry by GC

Materials Columbine Kitchen and Bath $8,275 Materials by GC $4,800

Labor Columbine Kitchen and Bath $795 Labor by GC $800

Subtotal Division 12 - Furnishings $36,551 Subtotal Division 12 - Furnishings $25,050

DIVISION 15 - MECHANICAL DIVISION 15 - MECHANICAL

Fixture Installation Epic Plumbing or Heating $2,635 Fixture Installation Nothnagle plumbing $750

Subtotal Division 15 - Mechanical $2,635 Subtotal Division 15 - Mechanical $750

DIVISION 16 - ELECTRICAL DIVISION 16 - ELECTRICAL

Interior Electrical Magee Electric $1,500 Interior Electrical Rolly's Elec $1,000

Subtotal Division 16 - Electrical $1,500 Subtotal Division 16 - Electrical $1,000

Interior Direct Cost Total (Divisions 2 - 16) $69,843 Interior Direct Cost Total (Divisions 2 - 16) $43,933

Interior Total Cost (Including GCs & OH&P) $131,536 Interior Total Cost (Including GCs & OH&P) $77,635

Page 5



General Conditions

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost
012010 Project Manager 1 LS 1,200$                  1200 012010 Project Manager 12 wk 750 9000

012020 General Superintendent 0 N/A 0 0 012020 General Superintendent 8 wk 250 2000

012030 Project Superintendent 1 LS 39,686$                39686 012030 Project Superintendent 8 wk 1500 12000

012040 Assistant Superintendent N/A 0 012040 Assistant Superintendent 0

012050 Project Engineer N/A 0 012050 Project Engineer 0

012070 Project Administrator N/A 0 012070 Project Administrator 0

012080 Field Engineer/Quality Control Engineer N/A 0 012080 Field Engineer/Quality Control Engineer 0

012090 Field Estimator N/A 0 012090 Field Estimator 0

012100 General Laborer N/A 0 012100 General Laborer 0

012110 Safety Director N/A 0 012110 Safety Director 0

013010 Plans & Specifications 1 LS 210$                     210 013010 Plans & Specifications 0

013020 Photographs 1 LS 240$                     240 013020 Photographs In 012030 0

013030 Submittals N/A 0 013030 Submittals add 500 500

013040 As-built Drawings N/A 0 013040 As-built Drawings add 500 500

013050 Closeout Documents N/A 0 013050 Closeout Documents 0

013060 Project Signage N/A 0 013060 Project Signage 0

013070 Video Documentation N/A 0 013070 Video Documentation 0

014010 Safety  Equipment 1 LS 200$                     200 014010 Safety  Equipment 1 allow 250 250

014020 First Aid Supplies 1 LS 60$                        60 014020 First Aid Supplies 0

014030 Fire Extinguishers N/A 0 014030 Fire Extinguishers 0

015010 Field Offices N/A 0 015010 Field Offices 0

015020 On-site Storage N/A 0 015020 On-site Storage 0

015030 Off-site Storage 1 LS 800$                     800 015030 Off-site Storage 0

015040 Portable Toilets 1 LS 600$                     600 015040 Portable Toilets 2 mo 200 400

015070 Temporary Generators N/A 0 015070 Temporary Generators 0

015090 Temporary Lighting N/A 0 015090 Temporary Lighting 0

015120 Telephone Set Up N/A 0 015120 Telephone Set Up 0

015130 Telephone, Monthly Fees N/A 0 015130 Telephone, Monthly Fees 0

015140 Cell Phones 1 LS 2,220$                  2220 015140 Cell Phones 0

015150 Radios N/A 0 015150 Radios 0

015160 Jobsite Drinking Water N/A 0 015160 Jobsite Drinking Water 0

015170 Temporary Fencing N/A 0 015170 Temporary Fencing 0

015180 Ladders & Stairs N/A 0 015180 Ladders & Stairs 0

015190 Employee Parking N/A 0 015190 Employee Parking 0

015200 Moving & Subsistence 1 LS 1,000$                  1000 015200 Moving & Subsistence 8 wk 250 2000

015210 Travel from Home Office N/A 0 015210 Travel from Home Office 0

015220 Office Supplies & Equipment 1 LS 3,040$                  3040 015220 Office Supplies & Equipment 0

015230 Postage & Shipping N/A 0 015230 Postage & Shipping 0

MW GOLDEN WHITESTONE CONSTRUCTION

Page 6



General Conditions

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost

MW GOLDEN WHITESTONE CONSTRUCTION

017020 Barricades 1 LS 1,000$                  1000 017020 Barricades 1 allow 1000 1000

017040 Storm Water Management N/A 0 017040 Storm Water Management 1 allow 750 750

017050 Erosion Control N/A 0 017050 Erosion Control 0

017060 Shoring N/A 0 017060 Shoring 0

017070 Traffic Control 1 LS 1,716$                  1716 017070 Traffic Control add 1300 1300

017080 Protection of Adjacent Construction N/A 0 017080 Protection of Adjacent Construction 0

017090 Protection of Installed Construction N/A 0 017090 Protection of Installed Construction 0

017100 Surveying N/A 0 017100 Surveying 0

017110 Construction Layout 1 LS 1,520$                  1520 017110 Construction Layout 0

017120 Field Engineering Equipment N/A 0 017120 Field Engineering Equipment 0

017130 Pick Up Rental & Expense N/A 0 017130 Pick Up Rental & Expense 8 wk 250 2000

017140 Fork Lift N/A 0 017140 Fork Lift 0

017150 Crane Costs N/A 0 017150 Crane Costs 0

017160 Material Hoisting N/A 0 017160 Material Hoisting 0

017170 Personnel Hoisting N/A 0 017170 Personnel Hoisting 1 mo 1000 1000

017180 Scaffolding N/A 0 017180 Scaffolding 0

017190 Water Truck N/A 0 017190 Water Truck 0

017200 Weather Protection N/A 0 017200 Weather Protection 0

017210 Snow & Ice Removal 1 LS 512$                     512 017210 Snow & Ice Removal 0

017220 Dumpster Fees 1 LS 1,600$                  1600 017220 Dumpster Fees add 1000 1000

017230 Progress Cleaning 1 LS 2,304$                  2304 017230 Progress Cleaning 8 wk 250 2000

017240 Final Clean Up 1 LS 1,290$                  1290 017240 Final Clean Up 16 mh 55 880

017250 Soils Testing N/A 0 017250 Soils Testing 0

017260 Concrete Testing N/A 0 017260 Concrete Testing 0

017270 Weld Inspections N/A 0 017270 Weld Inspections 0

011010 Building Permit N/A 0 011010 Building Permit 0

011020 Plan Check Fee N/A 0 011020 Plan Check Fee 0

011030 Water Tap Fees N/A 0 011030 Water Tap Fees 0

011040 Sewer Tap Fees N/A 0 011040 Sewer Tap Fees 0

011050 Sanitary Tap Fees N/A 0 011050 Sanitary Tap Fees 0

011060 Other Government Fees & Permits N/A 0 011060 Other Government Fees & Permits 0

011070 Performance & Payment Bonds 1 LS 3,277$                  3277 011070 Performance & Payment Bonds 1 ls 2600 2600

011080 Builder's Risk Insurance 1 LS 27$                        27 011080 Builder's Risk Insurance 1 ls 500 500

011090 General Liability Insurance 1 LS 735$                     735 011090 General Liability Insurance 1 ls 1000 1000

011100 Other Insurance 1 LS 18,504$                18504 011100 Other Insurance 0

011110 Preconstruction Services N/A 0 011110 Preconstruction Services 0

011120 Overhead N/A 0 011120 Overhead 1 ls 24000 24000

011130 Profit 1 LS 84,998$                84998 011130 Profit 1 ls 12000 12000
011140 Additional Soft Costs 0 011140 Additional Soft Costs 1 allow 6539 6539

Total General Conditions & Fees 166,738 Total General Conditions & Fees 83,219

Page 7



Alternates

MW Golden Construction Whitestone Construction

1a Upgrade Cabinetry - Cabinet/ 

Drawer/Door Style $2,559.00 $220.00

1b Upgrade Cabinetry - Cabinet/ 

Drawer/Door Finish $2,661.00 $0.00

1c Upgrade Cabinetry - All Plywood 

Construction $2,865.00 $2,500.00

1d Upgrade Cabinetry - Beadboard 

backsplash at "hutch" $593.00 $700.00

1e Upgrade Cabinetry - Glass upper cabinet 

doors at "hutch" $3,195.00 $1,800.00

1f Upgrade Cabinetry - Light valances at 

"hutch" $958.00 $200.00

1g Upgrade Cabinetry - Toe molding at 

"hutch" $429.00 $200.00

1h Upgrade Cabinetry - Laundry cabinet 

finish $594.00 $0.00

2 Upgrade West Property Fence $4,158.00 $1,200.00

3 Add Storm Door at Door #4 $1,815.00 $850.00

4 Colored Concrete at West Swale $595.00 $500.00

Revised 6/17/14 per clarifications

Page 8



 

1 
 6/23/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\RESEARCH AND RETRIEVAL-1.DOC 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 COUNTY OF GILPIN 

 CITY OF BLACK HAWK 

 

 Resolution No. 49-2014 
 

TITLE: A RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH THE FEES THAT MAY BE 

CHARGED FOR OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS UNDER THE 

COLORADO OPEN RECORDS ACT, C.R.S. § 24-72-200.1, et seq. 

 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Legislature recently amended the Colorado Open Records Act, 

C.R.S. § 24-72-200.1, et seq., limiting the research and retrieval fees that may be charged for 

public records requests; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen desire to adopt a resolution to comply with the 

recent amendments to the Colorado Open Records Act. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

Section 1. The Board of Aldermen of the City of Black Hawk hereby authorize the 

City Clerk in the City Clerk’s capacity as the custodian of records pursuant to the Colorado Open 

Records Act, C.R.S. § 24-72-200.1, et seq. (the “Act”) to impose a research and retrieval fee of 

$30.00 per hour, or any portion thereof, for voluminous or broadly stated requests for records as 

follows: 

 

A. Pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-205(6)(a), the first hour of research and retrieval time 

under the Act shall be free of charge;  

 

B.   The research and retrieval fee authorized by this Resolution shall be in addition to 

any charges imposed for the receipt of copies of any records open to inspection pursuant to the 

provisions of the Act; and 

 

C.   The City Clerk is further authorized to require a deposit based on the estimated 

time to do the research necessary to comply with a voluminous or broadly stated request before 

any such search commences. 

 



 

2 
 6/23/14 

Q:\USERS\BH\RES\2014\RESEARCH AND RETRIEVAL-1.DOC 

Section 2. The City Clerk shall post to the City’s website the aforementioned 

research and retrieval fee policy upon passage of this Resolution, and no later than June 30, 

2014. 

 

RESOLVED AND PASSED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David D. Spellman, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Greiner, City Clerk 


	Agenda June 25, 2014
	Approval of Minutes
	Draft Minutes June 11, 2014

	Council Bill 11 Rezoning 231 Gregory Street
	Council Bill 11
	CB 11 Request for Council Action
	CB11 Staff Report
	CB11 Notice of Public Hearing
	CB11 Land Use Application
	CB11 Exhibit A

	Resolution 45-2014 Isle Casino Sign CofA
	Resolution 45-2014
	R45 Request for Council Action
	R45 Staff Report
	R45 Notice of Public Hearing
	R45 Land Use Application
	R45 Comprehensive Sign Plan

	Resoultion 46-2014 Saquatch Casino SPD
	Resoultion 46-2014 
	R46 Request for Council Action
	R46 Staff Report
	R46 Notice of Public Hearing
	R46 Land Use Application 
	R46 Site Development Plan

	Resolution 47-2014 Lady Luck Casino CofA
	Resolution 47-2014
	R47 Request for Council Aciton
	R47 Staff Report
	R47 Notice of Public Hearing
	R47 Land Use Application
	R47 Comprehensive Sign Plan

	Resolution 48-2014 Canyon Casino CofA
	Resolution 48-2014
	R48 Request for Council Action
	R48 Staff Report
	R48 Notice of Public Hearing
	R48 Land Use Application
	R48 Comprehensive Sign Plan

	Purchase of New Street Sweeper
	Request for Council Action

	Traffic Signal Timing Study
	Request for Council Action

	271 Church Street Construction Bid and Project Budget Recommendation
	Request for Council Action
	Bid Analysis

	Resolution 49-2014 CORA

